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The review of the financial year ending on the 31st August 2020 gives us the first opportunity to present the results of the 
new strategy which commenced in November 2019, whereby we focused the activities of Wey Education through InterHigh 
and Academy 21. I am pleased to report that we have achieved all of the short to medium term goals that we set at that time 
and that the business is performing well against all of our internal metrics.  
 
The growth of our student base is very pleasing, and it is becoming increasingly clear that we represent a true alternative to 
a traditional education in a bricks and mortar environment. At the time of writing over 3,000 students receive an education 
from Wey and the quality and breadth of education they receive is no less impressive than the high number of students 
enrolled. 
 
As part of our strategic review, we wanted to continue to refine and show ambition in our education provision. We have 
restructured our senior education team into a flexible, collegiate structure to suit our modern, progressive ethos. Under the 
leadership of our Director of Education, Dr Sara de Freitas, we have seen early benefits of this new strategy including 
improvements in the quality of materials, transparency of reporting and a highly motivated new team. 
 
Our educational delivery and engagement goals include the desire to incorporate relevant augmented reality, artificial 
intelligence and gamification as part of our provision and Sara has significant experience in these fields. We continue to be 
an attractive destination for teachers and have been able to support our teaching staff with our accredited teaching online 
qualification which is being undertaken and passed by an increasing number of our team. We are experiencing no difficulties 
in the recruitment of high-quality teaching staff to accommodate new learners.  
 
This calendar year has also seen us recruit a new Director of Marketing, Esther Clark, who is implementing strategies to not 
only increase the awareness of our services but also to directly market to parents and educational institutions. Whilst it is 
early days, we are pleased to note that our marketing expenditure is seeing tangible results, particularly from awareness 
and radio campaigns. We are increasing our investment in Wey ambassadors and believe that the recruitment of these well-
known individuals, in a very modern marketing mix, will lead to improvements in brand association and awareness. We are 
confident these new marketing initiatives will continue to attract new students to our ever-increasing cohort. Our strategy 
going forward is to continue to increase marketing expenditure in a targeted way, benefitting from the knowledge we are 
gaining from more market analysis and feedback. Our enhanced education structure gives us more opportunities in terms of 
gearing our education provision towards an ever-increasing number of students. 
 
In Academy 21 we have continued to grow our sales staff and in the light of recent events continue to demonstrate that Wey 
is a real alternative for local authorities, schools and other institutions. We have no doubt that further opportunities are 
available to us in the business to business market where we sell directly to commercial organisations and school groups and 
I believe that the opportunity here has only been limited so far by our desire to focus on the delivery of our initial strategic 
goals. We are also increasing our investments in Information Technology, with further enhancement and solidification of the 
Wey platform. Our ability to use third party platforms ensures scalability and quality of delivery and we are also improving 
our operational systems. 
 
Financially, this was a year for Wey to demonstrate that it could show a very clear relationship between student numbers, 
gross margin and profitability and I am very pleased that we have recorded a profit for the year which is not compromised by 
external investments and restructuring costs as it was in previous periods. I believe that these results also show the ability 
for Wey to gear its investments in marketing further to achieve increasing levels of profitability in future. Of course, we are 
also focused on ensuring that we continue to attract students through the quality and desirability of our education provision. 
Our cash position is very strong and gives us a firm basis for future investment considerations in new materials and 
technology.  
 
Having achieved our short to medium term goals in a timely fashion, we are now focused on the next steps towards Wey 
becoming the size of a Multi Academy Trust in terms of student numbers. Clearly, there are a multitude of opportunities and 
online education is now in the broader conversation across the media and elsewhere. I am determined that we retain our 
focus but remain ambitious as to the markets that we can address.  
 
Dame Erica Pienaar has recently stepped down as a Non-Executive director of Wey and I would like to take this opportunity 
of thanking her for her steadfast support and being instrumental in defining Wey’s attitude towards the quality and safety of 
its education provision. Erica has been elected Chancellor Emeritus of InterHigh in perpetuity and continues to head our 
Academic Council. We are currently interviewing for a replacement Non-Executive Director. 
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Finally, I must thank Jacqueline Daniell, the Board and our staff for their hard work and dedication. Everyone at Wey is 
committed to providing a high-quality individual learning experience for our students. The success of this financial year and 
our solid basis for the future is a result of their commitment.  

 
  
 
 
 
 
Barrie RJ Whipp 
Chairman 
20 November 2020 
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I am pleased to be able to report on a year where Wey Education set and met its clear objectives of accelerated 
growth, with measurable results. High level goals and initiatives have been linked to operations so that every part of 
the business has understood what was to be accomplished and delivered their targets. We have continued to build 
alignment across departments with a detailed plan that rallies everyone around KPIs, milestones, and deliverables 
for young learners. 
 
At the start of the academic year, new pupil enrolment numbers benefitted from the summer radio campaigns with 
the more recently established junior school performing well. Student numbers generally rose through the autumn 
period and throughout the new year. From the beginning of the UK lockdown, student numbers enrolled in 
Alternative Provision started to decline as Local Authorities and state school customers sought to look at utilising the 
provision they were now having to provide themselves while their schools were closed. However, the total student 
numbers across the operating businesses continued to climb throughout the year. 
 

 
For clarity I describe our operating businesses as follows: 
 
InterHigh (www.interhigh.co.uk), InterHigh founded in 2005, has a 15-year track-record of delivering online 
schooling for both UK based and international fee-paying pupils. Interhigh caters for pupils from age 8 to 25 years old, 
offering a wide range of academic and enrichment courses, IGCSE, AS and A-Level subjects as well as vocational 
qualifications. It is a complete school with full academic, health and wellbeing and social programmes ensuring that all 
students who join the school study successfully for their future career choices. InterHigh is also available for partner 
schools and academies, both UK and international, to deliver supplementary academic programmes. 
 
 
Academy 21 (www.academy21.co.uk) Academy21 was founded in 2011 and is a specialist in providing Alternative 
Provision online. It delivers services designed to help schools, local authorities and other public bodies such as children’s 
homes meet the challenge of delivering short, medium- and long-term provision for pupils with complex behavioural, medical 
and mental health issues. It provides a balance of academic challenge and educational engagement through quality 
teaching and learning with flexible study programmes – responding directly to the challenges schools and local authorities 
face in securing high quality, cost effective alternative education provision. 
 
Education and Learning 
As part of Wey’s wider business strategy adopted in November 2019, Dr Sara de Freitas was appointed in January 2020 to 
provide Leadership of the Education Strategy to enhance quality, improve student engagement and scale for growth. This 
year has seen the reshaping of the Education Department, introducing a more collegiate structure to lead the main 
programmes of the education strategy - quality, curriculum and the learner experience, as well as leading on outcomes. In 
addition, Sara has strengthened the safeguarding processes and procedures and re-aligned the Academic Council. Sara 
also defined our internal investment in a Learning Design Team for the Learning Development Programme, attracted 
external funding from InnovateUK to develop virtual labs, trips and campus and started to implement the Wey Education 
Model of Learn-Explore-Apply-Reflect. This is designed to make use of different teaching modes that correspond with the 
different learning modes pupils assume during the process of learning.  
  
The education strategy also includes a number of associated plans including the Professional Development Plan, a training 
programme for Newly Qualified Teachers, and improvements to the Teaching Online ATHE accredited course. Other 
initiatives include the Quality Enhancement Plan with an academic focus on attaining Online accreditation, implementing the 
Quality Framework, School Improvement Plans, revamping the Assessment and Examinations facility, enhanced Education 
Delivery and a revision of Alternative Provision, Primary and College Plans. 
 
In summary, our education provision has been restructured to ensure the best individual learning experience across the 
Wey group for an increasing number of students.  
 
Marketing 
In March 2020 Esther Clark took up her duties as Director of Marketing to continue the marketing activities and growth of 
InterHigh and Academy21 in both the UK and international markets. Wey Education uses a marketing mix as well as 
traditional and digital channels to not only increase awareness of its offering but also to guide prospective families and 
clients from consideration to decision stages.  
 
From May 2020, a marketing strategy for accelerated growth was developed that centres on the customer and growth of the 
customer base through the recruitment of students and business partners; the retention of students and clients; the referrals 
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from increased awareness activity as well as media and public relations. Brand positioning, business to business and 
business to consumer marketing plans have been completed and actioned in 2020. A comprehensive Ambassador 
programme has been developed to accelerate brand awareness and growth. 
 
Wey has achieved notable success in sharing student stories, testimonials and thought leadership in the form of news 
articles, blogs and industry publications. Sharing what Wey does and the benefits of online learning are essential to Wey’s 
accelerated growth as online learning moves towards mainstream customers. InterHigh was recognised as “Educational 
Establishment of the Year” at the annual Education Resources Awards.  
 
Staffing 
Highly effective resourcing has been a key business initiative to enable the business to deliver both the growth and quality 
elements of the Wey strategy. There have been Executive appointments to the Board as described as well as the 
appointment of Keith Geraghty as Chief Technology Officer (CTO).  The CTO is positioned to develop and deliver the 
technology strategy outlined below. The executive team is well set, performing well and positioned to further build on our 
global international strategy.  
 
There has been further organisational realignment to enable the business to scale and grow in line with the business 
objectives of increased student enrolments.  The overall headcount is now over 200 employees. A significant tranche of 42 
teachers have joined for the new academic year ahead and recruitment to fulfil student demand and ensure a high-quality 
student experience as well as excellent educational outcomes is ongoing. 
 
Wey had already launched its remote working policies before national lockdown and has been well placed to respond to the 
global pandemic from a highly engaged and motivated employee base. Our teaching staff have always worked remotely, 
meaning that we were able to continue our education provision with no disruption to our learners.  
 
Technology 
Current Wey technology architecture successfully delivers the needs of today’s business. Wey has been preparing to scale 
to next level growth. Programmes to deliver exceptional service, deliver improved operational efficiency and to strategically 
assist learning delivery to remain at the forefront of education presents an opportunity for Wey to now invest in a step 
change in cutting edge technology architecture. With the appointment of a Chief Technical Officer, the division have been 
planning the new technology strategy and investment into the target Wey technology architecture has commenced with new 
platforms planned for delivery in 2021 and beyond. 
 
Summary 
The 2019- 2020 year has seen the greatest internal rate of change since our formation. Wey has implemented 
unprecedented marketing investments and activity and experienced increased level of interest, scrutiny and enrolments as a 
result. Simultaneously we have transformed our structures, content, processes and procedures to meet the actual and 
anticipated changing profile of our customers now and going forward to meet our ambitious vision. 
 

 
 
 
 

Jacqueline K Daniell 
CEO 
20 November 2020 
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I am pleased to report on another excellent year where we have delivered sustained growth in the business, delivered 
on our strategic aims and continued investment in the future growth of the business.  
 
Group revenues of £8.4m for the year ended 31 August 2020 represents year on year growth of 38%. Revenues in the 
second half of the year overall were positively impacted by Covid, representing 54% of overall revenues for the year. Profit 
margins have been maintained at over 60% even in light of investment in the education team to drive the next phase 
of growth in the business as well as the enhancement of the quality of education delivery.  
 
As the awareness of online schooling has increased, we have increased our marketing expenditure to capitalise on 
the current market opportunity.  We have also bolstered our Executive team with two appointments in the year. This 
has led to administrative expenses increasing from £3.4m to £4.5m year on year. A proportion of that spend which 
primarily occurred in the final quarter of the financial year is clearly intended to deliver increased revenue and profits 
for 2021 and beyond.  
 
Overall, we have delivered a profit before tax of £500k for the year ended 31 August 2020, versus a loss before tax of 
£693k in the year ended 31 August 2019. The prior year was heavily impacted by restructuring and other one-off 
costs. A further comparative is the operating profit of £498k in the current year, versus £53k in the prior year as 
outlined below. On an adjusted basis, PBT has more than doubled, to £652k.  
 
To reconcile profit before tax to adjusted profit, profit before tax from continuing operations adjusted for exceptional 
items, amortization of acquired intangibles and share based payments as detailed below.  
 
 Year 

ended 31 
August  

2020 
£ 

 Year 
ended 31 

August  
2019 

£ 
Profit/(Loss) before tax from continuing operations 500,385  (380,691) 
Add back:    
Interest income (1,906)  (2,063) 
Exceptional costs  -  435,755 
Adjusted Operating profit/(loss) 498,479  53,001 
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 78,748  160,000 
Equity based share awards 74,513  109,060 
Adjusted PBT from continuing operations 651,740  322,061 
    
Adjusted EPS (p) 0.47  0.25 
Adjusted Diluted EPS (p) 0.46  0.23 

 
 
Receivables 
Overall receivables have increased from £735k to £975k largely as a result of amounts held as retentions by our card 
processing merchants – this is a timing issue and is linked to the volume of transactions.  
 
Trade receivables net of provision stand at £505k, a marginal increase from the prior year balance of £498k but overall 
represents a reduction in debtor days from 30 to 22.  
 
 
Liabilities 
Current liabilities have increased to £3.2m from £2.1m. The majority of this increase is due to an increase in the 
deposits held against student accounts (up £652k) and amounts billed or received in advance of the current financial 
year (up £382k). This demonstrates the healthy position in which the group commences the 2020/21 financial year.  
 
Cash 
The group maintained a very strong cash position with £6.5m (2019: £5.0m) of cash balances held at the year end.  
 
Other than the lease liabilities outlined below, the group has no debt.  
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Changes to accounting standards 
The group has adopted IFRS16: Leases from 1 September 2019 on a modified retrospective approach. Therefore, it 
has not restated comparative period balances.  
 
IFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease accounting. It introduces significant changes 
to lessee accounting by removing the distinction between operating and finance leases and requiring the recognition 
of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at commencement for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of 
low value assets.  
 
At year-end the Group had right-of-use assets of £158k with matching lease liabilities of £160k. 
  
The interest expense in the financial statements of £8k relates wholly to the group’s lease liabilities.  
 
Taxation 
The group’s profitability and expectation of future profitability has led to the recognition of deferred tax assets of 
£370k. These tax assets will be available to offset against expected future profits in FY21 and beyond.  
 
 

 
 

 
Barry Nichols-Grey 
Finance Director 
20 November 2020 
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Jacqueline Daniell, CEO 

 

Jacqueline is one of the founders of both InterHigh School 
and Academy21. She was previously the Chief Executive of 
InterHigh School where she led the operations and strategic 
direction with full responsibility for all the online school 
service delivery. 

Jacqueline studied Architecture at Nottingham University, 
and later gained Masters degrees both in Management and 
in Town and Country Planning. She spent much of her 
career working in Project Management, creating and 
implementing sustainable regeneration programmes both in 
the Midlands and in South Wales. In 2005 she became 
involved in the design of an online secondary School – 
InterHigh, then gaining international and domestic Quality 
accreditations for this provision. 

 

Barrie Whipp, Chairman 

 

Barrie was appointed Chairman of Wey in 2019, having 
been a Non-Executive Director for nearly three years. Barrie 
has a particular interest in education; he has an Honours 
degree in History from the Open University and served as a 
Governor of Frant Church of England Primary School for 8 
years, latterly as Chair of Governors.  Barrie is 
also Executive Chairman of Crimson Tide Plc (AIM:TIDE), 
the provider of the mpro5 mobile app service which he 
founded in 1996. 

Previously, Barrie founded the financial services arm of 
Tiphook plc and was Group Managing Director of IAF Group 
Plc. He served as a non-executive director of Wills Group 
plc as well as a number of private companies. 

 

Barry Nichols-Grey, Finance Director 

 

Barry is a Chartered Accountant who qualified with PwC in 
2012. Prior to joining Wey, he was Finance Director at 
Dezrez Services Limited, a SaaS provider to the UK estate 
agency industry. 

Barry studied Economics at Royal Holloway, University of 
London and spent two years working at the Financial 
Services Authority before returning to Wales to commence 
his accountancy training. Barry has a wide range of 
experience working with businesses ranging from start-ups 
to plcs. 

 

 

  



Wey Education plc 
Board of Directors 
31 August 2020 
 

  

10 

Tony Knowles, HR & Operations Director 

 

Tony has over 25 years’ experience in Human Resource 
Management and has worked at Executive and Board level 
across a range of industry sectors. 

Tony is a Chartered Fellow of the CIPD, FCIPD. He is also 
graduate and has a post graduate in personnel management. 
He has worked and led HR functions throughout the UK and 
EU as well as North America and Asia. Previously, he worked 
in Financial Services and more recently for a number of 
technology businesses successfully supporting acquisition 
and divestiture programmes. 

 

 

 

Dr Sara de Freitas, Education Director 

 

Sara is an eminent educator with over 25-years experience in 
education. She is currently working as Executive Director of 
Education at Wey Education PLC. Sara has held senior roles 
in research and education in 6 universities in the UK and 
Australia, as Director of Research, Associate Deputy Vice 
Chancellor, Pro Vice Chancellor and Deputy Vice Chancellor. 
 
With a PhD in information science, Sara has worked in 
Computer Science and Education disciplines, holding 
Professorships in Education, most recently as Professor of 
Digital Education. 
 
She has led over 50 research and development projects, 
including as a Scientific Coordinator for a European Union 
network of excellence, and as an investigator on two 
Engineering and Physical Sciences Research Council grants, 
as well as holding 15 European Commission grants. 
 

 

John Bridges, Non-Executive Director 

 

John Bridges has worked in the City for over sixty years. The 
majority of his first twenty years was in institutional 
stockbroking and the remainder in public company corporate 
finance. 
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31 August 2020 

The purpose of the Strategic Report is to enable shareholders to assess how the directors have performed their duty to 
promote the success of the Group. 

Principal activities 
The Group is an online educational services group using an internet-based platform to deliver teaching to students at primary, 
secondary and of sixth form age both in the UK and overseas. The Group operates two school brands, InterHigh, a 
truly online school and Academy 21, which provides alternative education options for other schools and businesses. The 
Group’s overall goal is to create value for shareholders through delivering education and services to customers in a profitable 
business model. To achieve this the Group is pursuing the following strategic objectives:  

• To increase the Group’s revenues by increasing the number of students who use the Group’s services;
• To deliver excellent online education; and
• To be at the forefront of registration, compliance and inspection of online education providers.

A review of the business of the Group can be found in the Chairman’s Statement. The directors consider that the financial 
key performance indicators are turnover, operating profit before depreciation, amortisation of acquired intangible assets, 
equity based share payments, earnings per share and the Group’s net debt/net cash.  

Review of operations 
A review of the business of the Group and an indication of likely future developments including research and development 
can be found in the Chairman’s Statement. 

Key Financial Performance Indicators 
The Board monitors the activities and performance of the Group on a regular basis. The primary performance indicators for 
the Group are: 

Financial Performance 
• Turnover for the year from continuing operations was £8,364,052 (2019: £6,049,370);

• The operating profit of the Group for the year from continuing operations before exceptional items, amortisation of acquired
intangibles and equity- based share awards was £651,740 (2019: £322,061);

• The profit per share from continuing operations was 0.63p (2019: loss of 0.29p per share); and

• At 31 August 2020 the Group cash balance was £6,508,973 (2019: £4,961,373.)

Principal risks and uncertainties 
The management of the business and the execution of the Group’s strategy are subject to a 
number of risks.  The key business risks affecting the Group are set out below. 

Risks are reviewed by the Board and the appropriate processes are put in place to monitor and mitigate them. If more than 
one event occurs, it is possible that the overall effect of such events would compound the possible adverse effects on the 
Group. 

Dependence on key personnel 
The Group is dependent upon its directors both at the parent company level and at the subsidiary level.  The development 
and success of the Group depends on the Group’s ability to a) adequately fund its activities and b) recruit and retain high 
quality and experienced staff. The inability to attract additional qualified personnel as the Group grows could have an adverse 
effect on the future business and financial conditions. 

Funding risk 
The Group may not be able to raise, either by debt or equity, sufficient funds to enable it to finance its future strategy or any 
identified acquisition. 
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IT systems 
The Group operates in a highly dependent IT environment and data held by the Group needs to be secure against a 
background of increasing cyber threat. A breach of data security or IT systems failure could have an adverse impact on the 
delivery of the Group’s core product, potentially resulting in reputational damage. The risk is mitigated by the use of third 
party cloud hosting and software suppliers but similarly, breeches or system failures at those suppliers could have a knock-
on effect to the Group. 
  
Brexit  
The Board recognises the continued uncertainty around the implications of the UK’s exit from the EU and continues to monitor 
and put steps in place to mitigate any potential impacts to the Group.  
  
Internal Controls 
The Board recognises the importance of both financial and non-financial controls. Since the Group was established, the 
directors are satisfied that, given the current size and activities of the Group, adequate internal controls have been 
implemented. Whilst they are aware that no system can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, 
in light of the current activity and proposed future development of the Group, continuing reviews of internal controls will be 
undertaken to ensure that they are adequate and effective. 
  
Covid 19 
Acceptance and awareness of online learning was increasing prior to Covid, and clearly adoption has been accelerated as 
a result of the pandemic.  
 
The timing of events means that only the Summer Term of the 2019/20 academic year was impacted, a period covering 
approximately the final four months of the 2020 financial year.  
  

Likely future developments 
The Company is ambitious with its future growth plans. It has already expanded the management team in meeting its 
ambitions to become the UK's largest secondary school. It intends to continue to grow and to become the size of a multi-
academy trust.  
  

Section 172(1) statement 
Throughout the year, the Directors have been mindful of their obligations under S172 of the Companies Act 2006. S172 sets 
out a number of principles the Board should have regard to in promoting the success of the Company for the benefit of 
shareholders. The Board have complied with this requirement as follows: 
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Principle  Company's actions 
   
The likely consequences of any decision in the long term.  The Directors understand that as an educational provider, 

ensuring that our learners achieve their desired educational 
outcomes is core to the Company's business objectives and 
model. Therefore any key decisions are made with 
consideration for the long term success of our learners.  
 
 

The interests of the company's employees.  The Company understands that its employees are at the 
core of the service provided to its customers and offers 
appropriate training and development opportunities. The 
company offers an employee assistance programme to 
support its employees' wellbeing.  
 
Certain employees are incentivised through the Company's 
share option schemes.  
 
 

The need to foster the company's business relationships with 
suppliers, customers and others. 

 The company works closely with its key suppliers and has 
always sought to treat them fairly.  
 
The company always seeks to operate in an open, 
transparent and equitable fashion with all of its key 
stakeholders in order to foster strong working relationships.  
 

The impact of the company's operations on the community 
and the environment. 

 The teaching staff across the group have always worked 
remotely thus minimising its environmental impact. Covid 19 
has enabled all of its employees to work remotely, and this is 
likely to continue on an ongoing basis.  
 
 

The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for 
high standards of business conduct. 

 As outlined in the Corporate Governance statement the 
company acts in accordance with the ten key principles of 
the QCA Code.  
 
 
 

The need to act fairly as between members of the company.  The company treats all members equitably and liaises 
regularly with major shareholders. There are also 
opportunities for retail investors to meet with the Company 
either at the Annual General Meeting or at Investor Events 
help by the Company.  
 
 
 

  

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors. 
  
On behalf of the directors 
  
  
  
  
___________________________ 
Barrie R J Whipp 
 
  
20 November 2020 
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The directors present their report, together with the financial statements, on the consolidated entity (referred to hereafter as 
the 'group') consisting of Wey Education plc (referred to hereafter as the 'company' or 'parent entity') and the entities it 
controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended 31 August 2020. 
  

Review of operations 
The profit for the group after providing for income tax amounted to £869,682 (31 August 2019: loss of £685,417). 
  

Going concern 
The consolidated financial position of the Group shows a positive net and current asset position at 31 August 2020.  
  
The Group made a profit after tax for year of £869,682 (2019: loss after tax of £685,417) and as at 31 August 2020 the Group 
had a net cash balance of £6,508,973 (2019 : £4,961,373). At 31 October 2020, the Group had a net cash balance in excess 
of £7.1 million.  
  
The Group made an operating profit of £506,893 (2019: £53,001) before exceptional items. 
  
The Group's strategy to achieve profitability is through focus on continuing to grow its two core brands, Interhigh and 
Academy21. The Directors believe that the Group has reached an appropriate level of operational gearing in order to achieve 
ongoing sustainable profitability.  
 
Covid has had an overall positive impact upon the group as discussed in the Strategic report and the business continues to 
expand.  
  
The Directors have prepared and reviewed the Group's cash forecast and projections for the next 12 months. Based upon 
these projections and analyses the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and at least 12 months from the approval of these accounts and 
to be able to meet its debts as and when they fall due. 
  
In light of this, the Directors consider the going concern basis to be appropriate to the preparation of the financial statements 
of the Group.   
  

Dividends 
There were no dividends paid, recommended or declared during the current or previous financial year. 
  

Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year 
On 5 October 2020, the company issued 100,115 ordinary shares of one pence each as a result of an exercise of share 
options.  
  
As disclosed in note 32, three of the company's subsidiaries: 
 
- Infinite Education Limited;  
- Infinite Education (No 1) Limited; and 
- Quoralexis Learning Limited 
 
were struck off by the Registrar of Companies on 28 September 2020 and dissolved on 6 October 2020 at the completion of 
the voluntary strike off process entered into on 18 May 2020.  
  
No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 August 2020 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect 
the group's operations, the results of those operations, or the group's state of affairs in future financial years. 
  

Likely future developments 
The Directors have discussed the future developments for the business within the Strategic Report on page 11, in accordance 
with Section 414C of the Companies Act 2006.  
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Financial instruments 
The Group's risk management policies in relation to financial instruments are set out in note 27 to these consolidated financial 
instruments.  
  

Charitable and political donations 
No charitable or political donations were made during the year (2019: £Nil) 
  

Employees 
The Group believes in valuing a diverse workforce. It is our policy to provide employment equality to all, irrespective of: 
gender, sexual orientation, race, ethnic or national origins, nationality, colour, disability, gender reassignment, religion or 
belief, marriage or civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity or age. All job applicants, employees and others who work for 
us will be treated fairly and will not be discriminated against on any of the above grounds.  
  
The Group gives full consideration to employment applications from disabled persons where the candidate's particular 
aptitudes and abilities are consistent with adequately meeting the requirements of the job. Opportunities are available to 
disabled employees for training, career development and promotion. 
  

Information on directors 
The full biographies of the Directors can be found on page 9.  
  

Meetings of directors 
The number of meetings of the company's Board of Directors ('the Board') and of each Board committee held during the year 
ended 31 August 2020, and the number of meetings attended by each director were: 
  

 

 

Full Board 

 
Remuneration 

Committee 

 
Remuneration 

Committee 

 

Audit and Risk Committee 
  Attended  Held  Attended  Held  Attended  Held 
             
Barrie Whipp  6  6  -  -  -  - 
Jacqueline Daniell  6  6  -  -  -  - 
Tony Knowles  6  6  3  3  1  1 
Barry Nichols-Grey  5  6  -  -  1  1 
John Bridges  6  6  3  3  1  1 
Erica Pienaar*  5  5  3  3  -  - 
Sara de Freitas**  4  4  -  -  -  - 
  
Held: represents the number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was a member of the relevant 
committee. 
  
*  1. Appointed 23 January 2020 
**  2. Resigned 30 June 2020 
  
The Board meets on a regular basis throughout the calendar year and as required on an ad hoc basis with a mandate to 
consider strategy, operational and financial performance and internal controls. In advance of each meeting, an agenda is 
set. Directors are provided with appropriate and timely information and full minutes of each meeting are provided, including 
a log of actions to be taken. Each action is then followed up on at the next meeting, or before if appropriate.  
  

Indemnity of directors 
The company has indemnified the directors of the company for costs incurred, in their capacity as a director, for which they 
may be held personally liable, except where there is a lack of good faith. 
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Substantial shareholdings 
As at 31 August 2020, the company had been notified of the identity and percentage holdings of the Company's significant 
shareholders as set out in the table below: 
  
  Ordinary shares 
     % of total  
     shares 
  Number held  issued 
     
Gresham House Asset Management Limited  27,142,856  19.60 
The Estate of David Massie  21,451,362  15.49 
Jacqueline Daniell and Paul Daniell  10,316,490  7.45 
Unicorn AIM VCT plc  9,772,728  7.06 
Canacccord Genuity Group Inc  7,150,000  5.16 
Guinness Asset Management  5,714,286  4.13 
Premier Miton Group plc  5,335,878  3.85 
  

Notice of annual general meeting 
The Notice of the Annual General Meeting, setting out the proposed resolutions is available on the Company's website.  
  

Corporate Governance Statement 
The Board is committed to effective and robust corporate governance. The Board has agreed to apply the QCA Code. The 
QCA Code is available from the QCA website, www.theqca.com.  
 
Further detail can be found in the Corporate Governance Statement on page 17. 
  

Disclosure of information to the auditors 
So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit information, 
being information needed by the auditor in connection with preparing its report, of which the auditor is unaware. Having made 
enquiries of fellow directors and the group's auditor, each director has taken all the steps that they are obliged to take as a 
director in order to made themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that 
information. 
  

Independent Auditors 
A resolution to reappoint Shipleys LLP as auditor will be put to the shareholders at the annual general meeting.  
  

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors. 
  
On behalf of the directors 
  
  
  
  
___________________________ 
Barrie R J Whipp 
 
  
20 November 2020 
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Introduction 
This statement is made by me, Barrie Whipp, as the Company’s Chairman and explains the present corporate governance 
arrangements and the standards with which the Company complies. The Company has elected to adopt and comply with 
the QCA Corporate Governance Code (the “QCA Code”). This statement reflects the structures that the Company has 
adopted in order to achieve compliance with the QCA Code. The Company’s website (the “Website”) provides further 
explanation as to the Company’s compliance with the ten key principles of the QCA Code. 

The Board of Directors 
The Company (and thereby its group (the “Group”)) is ultimately managed by the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), 
who (individually and as a group) are responsible for running the Company for the benefit of its shareholders in accordance 
with their fiduciary and statutory duties. The Board of Directors (the “Board”) currently comprises six Directors: one Non-
Executive Director, the Chairman and four Executive Directors (being the CEO, the HR Director, the Finance Director and 
the Education Director). The Board has two standing committees (the “Committees”): the Audit Committee and the 
Remuneration Committee. The Terms of Reference for each of the Committees are available on the Website. 

Audit Committee  
The Audit committee has primary responsibility for monitoring the quality of internal controls and ensuring that the financial 
performance of the Group is properly measured and reported on. It receives and reviews reports from the Group’s 
management and auditors relating to the interim and annual accounts and the accounting and internal control systems in 
use throughout the Group. The audit committee meets no less than twice each year and has unrestricted access to the 
Group’s auditors. The audit committee comprises John Bridges, as Chairman and Barry Nichols-Grey. 

Remuneration Committee  
The Remuneration committee reviews the performance of executive Directors and senior management and makes 
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to their remuneration and terms of employment. 

The remuneration committee also makes recommendations to the Board on proposals for the granting of share options and 
other equity incentives pursuant to any share option scheme or equity incentive scheme in operation from time to time. The 
remuneration committee will meet at least once each year. The remuneration committee comprises John Bridges, as 
Chairman and Tony Knowles. The Remuneration committee has met during the year to consider the grant and exercise of 
EMI to members of staff, as well as Executive Remuneration.  

Nomination Committee 
The Board does not have a formally-established nominations committee. All matters concerning the appointment and 
removal of Directors, and for Executive and Non-Executive Director succession planning are considered by the full Board 
(with any appointments subject to a shareholder vote at the next Annual General Meeting). 

Chairman  
In my role as Chairman, I am responsible for:  

• setting the Company’s strategy and leading the Board, ensuring that all members are able to contribute to Board 
discussions and the wider running of the Group as appropriate;  

• ensuring that the Company acts in the best interests of shareholders and other stakeholders; and  

• the Group’s corporate governance arrangements. 

Executive Directors 
Jacqueline Daniell is the CEO and is responsible for managing the Company on a day to day basis within the authority 
delegated by the Board and ensuring that, alongside the Executive Team, that Board decisions are implemented effectively. 
In addition, the CEO is responsible for supporting the Chairman in his role.  

Tony Knowles is the HR & Operations Director and is responsible for all people and operations matters within the group. 

Barry Nichols-Grey is the Finance Director and is responsible for all finance matters within the group. 

Sara de Freitas is the Education Director and is responsible for the education strategy for the group. 
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Non-Executive Director 
The Non-Executive Director is John Bridges. He is considered to be independent. The Non-Executive Director challenges 
and scrutinises the performance of the Executive Directors, while supporting them in their delivery of the Company’s 
strategy and management of the Group’s risks. The Company is recruiting an additional Non-Executive Director following 
the retirement of Dame Erica Pienaar.  

The Company Secretary 
The Company Secretary is Barry Nichols-Grey and, in conjunction with me, he ensures that accurate, timely and clear 
information is provided to the Board in order for informed decisions and discussions to take place. The Company Secretary 
is responsible for advising the Board on governance matters and regulatory requirements. The appointment and removal of 
the Company Secretary is a matter reserved to the Board. All Directors have direct access to the Company Secretary and to 
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense as required. The Board (and its committees) obtained external 
advice from external advisers in the year in relation to group tax structure.  

Time Commitment of Directors 
The Executive Directors are full time and devote any time necessary to the role as required. None of the Executive Directors 
have any external appointments other than Sara de Freitas, who holds a Governor position with the University of 
Sunderland. The Chairman works for the Company on a part-time basis as required. Non-Executive Directors attend Board 
meetings at least quarterly. They also attend committee meetings and the Board considers that the Non-Executive Directors 
do exceed the expected time commitments for meetings, committees and ad-hoc events. 

Frequency of Meetings 
The Board meets at least four times a year and relevant information is distributed to Directors in advance of the meetings. 
Other meetings to deal with urgent or procedural matters which may occur between full meetings of the Board are held by 
telephone. The Group does not have a formal schedule of matters reserved to the Board but does maintain a delegated 
authority framework which is periodically reviewed and approved by the Board. Save for those matters delegated, the Board 
makes decisions on all material matters including strategy, annual operating and capital budgets, capital structure and 
financial and internal controls. 

Details of the individual Director’s attendance at Board and Committee meetings can be found in the Director’s Report.  

Evaluating Board Performance 
The Board has a number of sources of information from which it judges its own performance and that of the individual 
Directors, these include but are not limited to:  

• financial performance indicators including revenue, student numbers, gross margin, net margin, earnings per share 
and cash flow;  

• the Company’s share price;  
• reports from external auditors; shareholder feedback;  
• customer feedback;  
• formal and informal reviews of its effectiveness by the Company’s nominated adviser; and  
• employee feedback.  

All these factors are considered and action taken to improve performance as appropriate. The Board will formally evaluate 
its own performance (whether itself, through its retained advisers, or by engaging external consultants) not less than once a 
year.  Directors have access to professional courses where appropriate. Non-Executive Directors ensure they keep current 
with appropriate regulations and Board-appropriate websites and current affairs. 

Communication with Shareholders 
The Board attaches a high priority to communication with shareholders having regard to its obligations as a quoted public 
company and the AIM Rules. The Group liaises regularly with major shareholders and there is an opportunity for individual 
shareholders to question the management of the Company through the Chairman at the Annual General Meeting as well as 
Investor Events held by the Company. 

Culture 
The Board recognises that it has a unique position as an educational provider in that delivering educational outcomes must 
remain central to the Group’s business objectives and model. As such, the company promotes this culture at all levels of the 
organisation with policies and procedures designed to ensure that all staff maintain a continual focus on ensuring that 
students achieve their desired educational outcomes. The Board, led by its Chairman, promotes an open, honest and non-
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discriminatory culture. It extends this culture through the attendance of relevant managers at Board meetings. Staff are 
regularly updated in meetings, both of administrative and teaching staff. 

Risk Management and Internal Controls 
 The Board seeks to understand and manage the various risks that arise from its operations which include:  

• reputational risk; 
• contractual risk;  
• technical risk;  
• resourcing and infrastructure;  
• anti-corruption and compliance;  
• board and management succession; and  
• price and margin.  

The Board has overall responsibility for risk management and the Group’s systems of internal controls. Responsibility for 
implementing sound and effective systems of internal control has been delegated to the Executive Directors and senior 
management. Key risks to the Group’s business are recorded in a Group Risk Register and mitigants, controls and 
corrective actions are reviewed regularly by the Executive Directors and the Board. An organisational structure with clear 
operating procedures, lines of responsibility and delegated authority has been established and is kept under review. The 
purpose of the systems of internal control is to manage rather than eliminate the failure to achieve business objectives and 
can only provide reasonable, but no absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.  

City Code on Takeovers and Mergers 
The Company is subject to the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers.
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As an AIM listed company, the company is not required to comply with Schedule 8 of the Companies Act. However, in 
accordance with AIM notice 36, the Company has provided, in the Directors' remuneration report, the necessary disclosure 
of the Directors' remuneration earned in respect of the financial year by each Director of the Company acting in such a 
capacity during the financial year. The Directors also feel it is appropriate to provide the following information to shareholders.  
  

Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration 
The objective of the group's executive reward framework is to ensure reward for performance is competitive and appropriate 
for the results delivered. The framework aligns executive reward with the achievement of strategic objectives and the creation 
of value for shareholders, and it is considered to conform to the market best practice for the delivery of reward. The Board 
of Directors ('the Board') ensures that executive reward satisfies the following key criteria for good reward governance 
practices: 
●  competitiveness and reasonableness 
●  acceptability to shareholders 
●  performance linkage / alignment of executive compensation 
●  transparency 
  
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining and reviewing remuneration arrangements for its directors and 
executives. The performance of the consolidated entity depends on the quality of its directors and executives. The 
remuneration philosophy is to attract, motivate and retain high performance and high-quality personnel. 
 
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by John Bridges and its other member is Tony Knowles. The Committee refers to 
external evidence of pay and employment conditions in other company and is free to seek advice from external advisers.  
  
The reward framework is designed to align executive reward to shareholders' interests. The Board have considered that it 
should seek to enhance shareholders' interests by: 
●  having economic profit and revenue growth as core components of plan design 
●  focusing on sustained growth in shareholder wealth, consisting of dividends and growth in share price, and delivering 

constant or increasing return on assets as well as focusing the executives on key non-financial drivers of value 
●  attracting and retaining high calibre executives 
  
Additionally, the reward framework should seek to enhance executives' interests by: 
●  rewarding capability and experience 
●  reflecting competitive reward for contribution to growth in shareholder wealth 
●  providing a clear structure for earning rewards 
  
In accordance with best practice corporate governance, the structure of non-executive director and executive director 
remuneration is separate. 
  
Non-executive directors remuneration 
Fees and payments to non-executive directors reflect the demands and responsibilities of their role. Non-executive directors' 
fees and payments are reviewed annually by the Board. The Board may, from time to time, receive advice from independent 
remuneration consultants to ensure non-executive directors' fees and payments are appropriate and in line with the market. 
The Chairman's fees are determined by the Remuneration Committee based on comparative roles in the external market. 
The Chairman is not present at any discussions relating to the determination of his own remuneration.  
  
Executive remuneration 
The group aims to reward executives based on their position and responsibility, with a level and mix of remuneration which 
has both fixed and variable components. 
  
The executive remuneration and reward framework has four components: 
●  base pay and non-monetary benefits 
●  short-term performance incentives 
●  share options 
  
The combination of these comprises the executive's total remuneration. 
  
Fixed remuneration, consisting of base salary, pension contributions and non-monetary benefits, are reviewed annually by 
the Remuneration Committee based on individual and overall business performance and comparable market remunerations. 
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The short-term incentives ('STI') program is designed to align the targets of the business units with the performance hurdles 
of executives. STI payments are granted to executives based on specific annual targets and key performance indicators 
('KPI's') being achieved.  
  
The long-term incentives ('LTI') include share-based payments. Shares are awarded to executives over a period of three 
years based on long-term incentive measures.  
  
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is of the opinion that the continued improved results can be attributed in part 
to the adoption of performance based compensation and is satisfied that this improvement will continue to increase 
shareholder wealth if maintained over the coming years. 
  

Details of remuneration 
 
Amounts of remuneration 
  Fees/  Other  Pension  TOTAL  TOTAL 
  Salary      2020  2019 
  £  £  £  £  £ 
           
Current Directors           
B. R. J. Whipp  72,000  2,212  12,813  87,025  43,151 
J. K. Daniell  169,167  127  15,565  184,859  147,193 
B. P. Nichols-Grey  107,896  856  12,923  121,675  78,517 
A. G. Knowles  107,896  770  12,923  121,589  92,843 
J. E. R. Bridges  18,000  80  -  18,080  15,000 
S.I. de Freitas*  64,612  473  11,902  76,987  - 
  539,571  4,518  66,126  610,215  376,704 
           
Past Directors           
Dame E.C. Pienaar**  15,000  9,843  -  24,843  26,560 
D. L. Massie***  -  -  -  -  25,128 
  15,000  9,843  -  24,843  51,688 
           
  554,571  14,361  66,126  635,058  428,392 
  
*Appointed 23 January 2020 
 
**Resigned 30 June 2020. 
 
***Resigned 21 November 2018. 
  
The Group has a bonus scheme which was effective during the year for the Executive Directors. Bonuses accrued but not 
paid to the Executive Directors by the Group of £104,000 are included in the above amounts (2019: £83,000). 
  

Share-based compensation 
 
Issue of shares 
There were no shares issued to directors as part of compensation during the year ended 31 August 2020. 
  
Options 
During the year the cost of equity-based share awards relating to the Directors amounted to £55,943 (2019: £63,047) 
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Directors' Interests 
 
Shareholding 
The number of shares in the company held during the financial year by each director of the group, including their personally 
related parties, is set out below: 
  
  Balance at   Options      Balance at  
  the start of   exercised    Disposals/   the end of  
  the year    Additions  other  the year 
Ordinary shares           
J. K and P. Daniell  13,066,490  1,000,000  -  (3,750,000)  10,316,490 
B. R. J Whipp  741,000  250,000  -  (491,000)  500,000 
A. G. Knowles  216,862  -  -  (150,000)  66,862 
B. P. Nichols-Grey  83,633  -  -  (40,000)  43,633 
J. E. R. Bridges  500,000  -  -  -  500,000 
Dame E. C. Pienaar*  200,000  -  -  -  200,000 
  14,807,985  1,250,000  -  (4,431,000)  11,626,985 
  
*Up to 30 June 2020.  
  
Option holding 
The number of options over ordinary shares in the company held during the financial year by each director of the group, 
including their personally related parties, is set out below: 
  
  Balance at       Expired/   Balance at  
  the start of       forfeited/   the end of  
  the year  Granted  Exercised  other  the year 
Options over ordinary shares           
J. K. and P. Daniell  2,000,000  -  (1,000,000)  -  1,000,000 
A. G. Knowles  3,091,343  -  -  -  3,091,343 
B. P. Nichols-Grey  3,091,343  -  -  -  3,091,343 
  8,182,686  -  (1,000,000)  -  7,182,686 
  

Service contracts 
The Executive Directors of the Company do not have a notice period in excess of 12 months under the terms of their service 
contracts. Their service contracts contain no provisions for pre-determined compensation on termination which exceeds 12 
months' salary and benefits in kind. Non-Executive Directors do not have service contracts with the Company, but have 
letters of appointment which can be terminated on one or three months' notice.  
  

Company policy on external appointments 
The Company recognises the its Directors are likely to be invited to become non-executive directors of other companies and 
that exposure to such non-executive duties can broaden their experience and knowledge; which will benefit the Group. 
Executive and Non-Executive Directors are therefore, subject to approval of the Company's Board, allowed to accept non-
executive appointments, as long as these are not with competing companies and are not likely to lead to conflicts of interest. 
Executive and Non-Executive Directors are allowed to retain the fees paid.  
  
Dr Sara de Freitas holds a position as Governor of University of Sunderland.  
 
Barrie Whipp is a Director of Crimson Tide Plc and its subsidiary companies.  
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Changes to Board members 
Dr Sara de Freitas was appointed to the Board of Directors on 23 January 2020.  
  
Dame Erica Pienaar resigned from the Board of Directors on 30 June 2020.  
  

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors. 
  
On behalf of the directors 
  
  
  
  
___________________________ 
Barrie R J Whipp 
 
  
20 November 2020 
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The directors are responsible for preparing the strategic report, directors' report and the financial statements in accordance 
with applicable law and regulations. 
  
Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Company financial statements for each financial year. Under that 
law, the Directors are required under the AIM rules of the London Stock Exchange to prepare the Group financial statements 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union ("EU"), and have 
elected to prepare the Company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). - UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice ("UK 
GAAP").  
 
The Group financial statements are required by law and IFRS adopted by the EU to present fairly the financial position and 
performance of the Group; the Companies Act 2006 provides in relation to such financial statements that references in the 
relevant part of that Act to financial statements giving a true and fair view are references to their achieving a fair presentation.  
  
In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to: 
●  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
●  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
●  state whether International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') have been followed, subject to any material 

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 
●  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group will 

continue in business. 
  
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the group's 
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the group and enable them to ensure 
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of 
the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
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Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Wey Education plc (the ‘ Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) for 
the year ended 31 August 2020 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated and 
Company Balance Sheet, Consolidated and Company Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated and Company 
Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) 
as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the Parent Company financial statements, as applied in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. 
 
In our opinion: 
 
• the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 

31 August 2020 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended; 
• the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European 

Union;  
• the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the 

European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and 
• the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 
 
Basis for opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
The impact of macro-economic uncertainties on our audit 
 
Our audit of the financial statements requires us to obtain an understanding of all relevant uncertainties, including those arising 
as a consequence of the effects of macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit. All audits assess and challenge 
the reasonableness of estimates made by the Directors and the related disclosures and the appropriateness of the going 
concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments of the future economic 
environment and the Group’s and the Parent Company’s future prospects and performance. Covid-19 and Brexit are amongst 
the most significant economic events currently faced by the UK, and at the date of this report their effects are subject to 
unprecedented levels of uncertainty, with the full range of possible outcomes and their impacts unknown. We applied a 
standardised firm-wide approach in response to these uncertainties when assessing the Group’s and the Parent Company’s 
future prospects and performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible 
future implications for a Group associated with these particular events. 
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Conclusions relating to going concern 
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you 
where: 
 
• the Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not 

appropriate; or 
• the Directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant 

doubt about the Group’s and Parent Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a 
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

 
In our evaluation of the Directors' conclusions, we considered the risks associated with the Group’s and the Parent Company’s 
business, including effects arising from macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit, and analysed how those 
risks might affect the Group’s and Parent Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the period of at 
least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. In accordance with the above, we 
have nothing to report in these respects. However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent 
events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the 
absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the Group and the Parent 
Company will continue in operation 
 
Key audit matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance on our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due 
to fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources 
in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. 
 
Risk How the scope of our audit responded to 

the risk 
Management override of controls 
Journals can be posted that significantly 
alter the Financial Statements 

 
We examined journals posted around the 
year end, specifically focusing on areas 
which are more easily manipulated such as 
accruals, prepayments, bank reconciliations 
and tax. 

Going Concern 
There is a risk that the company may hold 
insufficient working capital to allow it to meet 
its financial obligations as they fall due thus 
giving rise to a going concern risk.  

 
Existing cash reserves have been evidenced 
and future cashflow forecasts have been 
reviewed to ensure sufficient cash headroom 
exists for a period of at least one year from 
the date of approving these financial 
statements.  

Fraud in Revenue Recognition 
There is a risk that revenue is materially 
understated due to fraud. 

 
Income was tested on a sample basis for 
completeness and we concluded that no 
evidence of fraud or other understatement 
was identified. 

Accounting Estimates 
Potential risk of inappropriate accounting 
estimates giving rise to misstatement in the 
accounts.  

 
Accruals were agreed to expected costs and 
supporting documentation, and other areas 
were examined to identify any potential 
accounting estimates.  
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Risk of material misstatement within related 
party transactions 
There is a risk that related party transactions 
are potentially incomplete or materially 
misstated.  

 
 
Correspondence, including Board Minutes, 
and accounting records were reviewed for 
evidence of material related party 
transactions and it is considered that all 
relevant items have been disclosed.  

Risk that system migration has caused 
material errors in accounting records. 
There is a risk of incorrect or incomplete data 
was transferred to new system. 

 
 
We have performed a thorough review of the 
opening and closing balances per system at 
the time of migration. 

 
Our application of materiality 
 
We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be charged or influenced. We use materiality both in planning and in 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work. 
 
We determine materiality for the Group to be £146,006 and this financial benchmark, which has been used throughout the 
audit, was determined by way of a standard formula being applied to key financial results and balances presented in the 
financial statements. Where considered relevant the materiality is adjusted to suit the specific risk profile of the Group. 
 
Performance materiality is the application of materiality at the individual account or balance level set at an amount to reduce 
to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds 
materiality. Performance materiality was set at 75% of the above materiality levels. 
 
Other information 
 
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in the Group Strategic 
Report and the Directors Report but does not include the financial statements and our Report of the Auditors thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material 
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
 
In our opinion the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2006. 
 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 
 
• the information given in the Group Strategic Report and the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial 

statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and 
• the Group Strategic Report and the Directors' Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 

requirements. 
 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its environment obtained in the 
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Group Strategic Report of the Directors' Report. 
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report 
to you if, in our opinion: 
 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not 

been received from branches not visited by us; or 
• the Parent Company’s financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 
• certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 
 
Responsibilities of Directors 
 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 24, the Directors are responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal 
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Parent Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, 
or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting 
Council’s website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 
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Use of our report 
 
This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with chapter 3 of part 16 of the Companies 
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are 
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not 
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit 
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stewart Jell (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
 
For and on behalf of 
Shipleys LLP 
Chartered accountants & statutory auditor 
10 Orange Street 
Haymarket 
London 
WC2H 7DQ  
 

 
  20/11/2020
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Revenue    8,364,052   6,049,370  
Cost of sales    (3,322,175)  (2,447,538) 
       
Gross profit    5,041,877   3,601,832  
  
Other income    2,360   5,668  
  
Expenses       
Administrative expenses    (4,462,831)  (3,445,439) 
Equity based share awards    (74,513)  (109,060) 
  
Operating profit/(loss)     506,893   53,001  
  
Exceptional Costs    -    (435,755) 
Interest income    1,906   2,063  
Interest payable    (8,414)  -   
  
Profit/(loss) before income tax benefit from continuing operations    500,385   (380,691) 
  
Income tax benefit  7  369,297   7,804  
  
Profit/(loss) after income tax benefit from continuing operations    869,682   (372,887) 
       
Loss after income tax expense from discontinued operations  8  -    (312,530) 
  
Profit/(loss) after income tax benefit for the year attributable to the owners of 
Wey Education plc 

 
25 

 
869,682  

 
(685,417) 

  

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax    -    -   
  
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the owners of Wey 
Education plc 

 
 

 
869,682  

 
(685,417) 

  
Total comprehensive income for the year is attributable to:       
Continuing operations    869,682   (372,887) 
Discontinued operations    -    (312,530) 
       
    869,682   (685,417) 
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    Pence  Pence 
       
Earnings per share for profit/(loss) from 
continuing operations attributable to the owners 
of Wey Education plc 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Basic earnings/(loss) per share  9  0.63          (0.29) 
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share  9  0.62          (0.29) 
       
Earnings per share for loss from discontinued 
operations attributable to the owners of Wey 
Education plc 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Basic earnings/(loss) per share  9  -      (0.24) 
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share  9  -      (0.24) 
       
Earnings per share for profit/(loss) attributable to 
the owners of Wey Education plc 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Basic earnings/(loss) per share  9  0.63      (0.52) 
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share  9  0.62      (0.52) 
  
There is no recognised income or expense for the year other that the loss shown above and therefore no separate statement 
of other comprehensive income has been presented 
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Assets 

Current assets 
Trade and other receivables 10 975,098 735,334 491,307 718,773 
Cash and cash equivalents 11 6,508,973 4,961,373 2,806,006 1,084,125 
Total current assets 7,484,071 5,696,707 3,297,313 1,802,898 

Non-current assets 
Goodwill 12 1,630,939 1,630,939 - - 
Investment in subsidiaries 13 - - 1,702,107 1,702,107 
Intangibles 14 410,901 449,628 366,311 326,294 
Property, Plant and Equipment 15 195,579 170,990 175,803 141,918 
Right-of-use assets 16 157,685 - 157,685 - 
Deferred tax 17 371,494 - 371,494 - 
Total non-current assets 2,766,598 2,251,557 2,773,400 2,170,319 

Total assets 10,250,669 7,948,264 6,070,713 3,973,217 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 18 587,164 323,904 375,270 192,438 
Lease liabilities 20 39,959 - 39,959 - 
Other 19 2,595,714 1,865,067 198,482 474,259 
Total current liabilities 3,222,837 2,188,971 613,711 666,697 

Non-current liabilities 
Lease liabilities 21 119,892 - 119,892 - 
Deferred tax 22 18,777 - 18,777 - 
Total non-current liabilities 138,669 - 138,669 - 

Total liabilities 3,361,506 2,188,971 752,380 666,697 

Net assets 6,889,163 5,759,293 5,318,333 3,306,520 

Equity 
Issued capital 23 1,384,787 1,312,072 1,384,787 1,312,072 
Reserves 24 1,837,816 1,730,692 1,837,816 1,730,692 
Retained profits 25 3,666,560 2,716,529 2,095,730 263,756 

Total equity 6,889,163 5,759,293 5,318,333 3,306,520 

___________________________ 
Barrie R J Whipp 

20 November 2020 

Company Registration Number 06342555 
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  Issued  Share  Option  Retained  
Total equity   capital  Premium  Reserves  profits  

Consolidated  £  £  £  £  £ 
           
Balance at 1 September 2018  1,307,072  7,515,023  110,323  (2,604,454)  6,327,964 
           
Loss after income tax benefit for the year  -  -  -  (685,417)  (685,417) 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net 
of tax 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

           
Total comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  (685,417)  (685,417) 
           
Exercise of share options and warrants  5,000  15,000  (6,400)  6,400  20,000 
Share based payments charge  -  -  96,746  -  96,746 
Capital reorganisation  -  (6,000,000)  -  6,000,000  - 
           
Balance at 31 August 2019  1,312,072  1,530,023  200,669  2,716,529  5,759,293 
  
  Issued  Share  Option  Retained  

Total equity   capital  Premium  Reserves  profits  
Consolidated  £  £  £  £  £ 
           
Balance at 1 September 2019  1,312,072  1,530,023  200,669  2,716,529  5,759,293 
           
Profit after income tax benefit for the year  -  -  -  869,682  869,682 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net 
of tax 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

           
Total comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  869,682  869,682 
           
Exercise of share options and warrants  72,715  129,539  (74,013)  74,013  202,254 
Share based payments charge  -  -  74,513  -  74,513 
Lapse of share options  -  -  (6,336)  6,336  - 
Tax relating to share option scheme  -  -  (16,579)  -  (16,579) 
           
Balance at 31 August 2020  1,384,787  1,659,562  178,254  3,666,560  6,889,163 
  
        

Total equity  
 Issued 

capital 
 Share 

Premium 
 Option 

Reserves 
 Retained 

profits 
 

Parent  £  £  £  £  £ 
           
Balance at 1 September 2018  1,307,072  7,515,023  110,323  (3,796,906)  5,135,512 
           
Loss after income tax benefit for the year  -  -  -  (1,945,738)  (1,945,738) 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net 
of tax 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

           
Total comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  (1,945,738)  (1,945,738) 
           
Exercise of share options and warrants  5,000  15,000  (6,400)  6,400  20,000 
Equity based share awards  -  -  96,746  -  96,746 
Capital reorganisation  -  (6,000,000)  -  6,000,000  - 
           
Balance at 31 August 2019  1,312,072  1,530,023  200,669  263,756  3,306,520 
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Total equity  
 Issued 

capital 
 Share 

Premium 
 Option 

Reserves 
 Retained 

profits 
 

Parent  £  £  £  £  £ 
           
Balance at 1 September 2019  1,312,072  1,530,023  200,669  263,756  3,306,520 
           
Profit after income tax benefit for the year  -  -  -  1,751,625  1,751,625 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net 
of tax 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

           
Total comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  1,751,625  1,751,625 
           
Exercise of share options and warrants  72,715  129,539  (74,013)  74,013  202,254 
Share based payment charge  -  -  74,513  -  74,513 
Lapse of share options  -  -  (6,336)  6,336  - 
Tax on share option scheme  -  -  (16,579)  -  (16,579) 
           
Balance at 31 August 2020  1,384,787  1,659,562  178,254  2,095,730  5,318,333 
  
Issued Capital 
Issued capital represents the par value of ordinary shares issued by the Company.  
  
Share premium 
Share premium represents the difference between the issue price and the par value of ordinary shares issued by the 
Company.  
  
Share Option Reserve 
Share option reserve represents the cumulative share-based payment expense for the Company's share option schemes.  
  
Retained profits 
Retained profits represent the cumulative profit and loss net of distributions to owners.  
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    £  £  £  £ 
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Cash flows from operating activities           
Profit/(loss) before income tax benefit for the year    500,385   (693,221)  1,382,328   (1,953,542) 
           
Adjustments for:           
Depreciation and amortisation    239,069   192,173   150,269   80,925  
Impairment    -    8,468   -    -   
Share-based payments    74,513   96,746   74,513   96,746  
Interest received    (1,906)  (2,063)  (1,062)  -   
           
    812,061   (397,897)  1,606,048   (1,775,871) 
           
Change in operating assets and liabilities:           
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables    (239,764)  (108,585)  227,466   (519,214) 
Decrease in other operating assets    -    64,190   -    223,191  
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables    263,260   120,651   182,832   (8,817) 
Increase/(decrease) in other operating liabilities    730,647   1,161,910   (275,777)  359,101  
           
    1,566,204   840,269   1,740,569   (1,721,610) 
Income taxes refunded    -    7,804   -    7,804  
           
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities    1,566,204   848,073   1,740,569   (1,713,806) 
  

Cash flows from investing activities           
Payments for property, plant and equipment  15  (104,751)  (46,324)  (103,991)  (44,661) 
Payments for intangibles  14  (78,800)  (87,621)  (78,800)  (87,620) 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 
equipment 
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-   

 
331  

 
-   

Interest received    1,906   2,063   1,062   -   
           
Net cash used in investing activities    (181,314)  (131,882)  (181,398)  (132,281) 
  

Cash flows from financing activities           
Proceeds from issue of shares  23  202,254   20,000   202,254   20,000  
Interest and other finance costs paid    (8,414)  -    (8,414)  -   
Repayment of borrowings    (31,130)  -    (31,130)  -   
           
Net cash from financing activities    162,710   20,000   162,710   20,000  
  

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    1,547,600   736,191   1,721,881   (1,826,087) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
financial year 

 
 

 
4,961,373  

 
4,225,182  

 
1,084,125  

 
2,910,212  

           
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial 
year 

 
11 

 
6,508,973  

 
4,961,373  

 
2,806,006  

 
1,084,125  
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Note 1. Significant accounting policies 
  
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies 
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
  
New or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted 
The group has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board ('IASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period. 
  
Any new or amended Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early adopted. 
  
The adoption of these Accounting Standards and Interpretations did not have any significant impact on the financial 
performance or position of the group. 
  
The following Accounting Standards and Interpretations are most relevant to the group: 
  
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
The consolidated entity has adopted IFRS 9 from 1 September 2018. The standard introduced new classification and 
measurement models for financial assets. A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows which arise on specified dates and that are 
solely principal and interest. A debt investment shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is 
held within a business model whose objective is to both hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows which arise on 
specified dates that are solely principal and interest as well as selling the asset on the basis of its fair value. All other financial 
assets are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless the entity makes an irrevocable election on 
initial recognition to present gains and losses on equity instruments (that are not held-for-trading or contingent consideration 
recognised in a business combination) in other comprehensive income ('OCI'). Despite these requirements, a financial asset 
may be irrevocably designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss to reduce the effect of, or eliminate, an 
accounting mismatch. For financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, the standard requires the portion 
of the change in fair value that relates to the entity's own credit risk to be presented in OCI (unless it would create an 
accounting mismatch). New simpler hedge accounting requirements are intended to more closely align the accounting 
treatment with the risk management activities of the entity. New impairment requirements use an 'expected credit loss' ('ECL') 
model to recognise an allowance. Impairment is measured using a 12-month ECL method unless the credit risk on a financial 
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition in which case the lifetime ECL method is adopted. For 
receivables, a simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a lifetime expected loss allowance is available. 
  
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
Revenue from contracts with customers, deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful 
information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows 
arising from an entity's contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a good or 
service and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The standard is effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. No changes have been made in respect of this amendment as it 
does not apply to the Group. 
  
IFRS 16 Leases 
The consolidated entity adopted IFRS 16 from 1 September 2019. The standard replaced IAS 17 'Leases' and for lessees 
eliminates the classifications of operating leases and finance leases. Except for short-term leases and leases of low-value 
assets, right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position. Straight-
line operating lease expense recognition will be replaced with a depreciation charge for the right-of-use assets (included in 
operating costs) and an interest expense on the recognised lease liabilities (included in finance costs). In the earlier periods 
of the lease, the expenses associated with the lease under IFRS 16 will be higher when compared to lease expenses under 
IAS 17. However, EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation) results improve as the operating 
expense is now replaced by interest expense and depreciation in profit or loss. For classification within the statement of cash 
flows, the interest portion is disclosed in operating activities and the principal portion of the lease payments are separately 
disclosed in financing activities. For lessor accounting, the standard does not substantially change how a lessor accounts for 
leases. 
 
See note 30  for further information on the impact of IFRS 16. 
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Annual Improvements to IFRS standards 2014 - 2016 cycle was issued on 8 December 2016 and addresses the following 
amendments: 
 
 - IFRS 1 "First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards" deleted the short-term exemptions dealing with 
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, IAS 19 Employee Benefits and IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements. The 
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. No changes have been made in respect of 
this amendment as the reliefs provided are no longer applicable. 
 
 - IFRS 12 "Disclosure of interest in other entities" clarifies that entities are no exempt from all of the disclosure requirements 
in IFRS 12 when entities have been classified as held for sale or as discontinued operations. The amendment is effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. All changes in respect of this amendment have been applied. 
 
 - IAS 28 "Investments in associated and joint ventures" provides a choice of accounting for investments in joint ventures 
and associated at fair value or using the equity method. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2018. No changes have been made in respect of this amendment as it does not apply to the Group. 
 
- IFRS 2, "Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions", provides requirements on the accounting 
for: the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; share-
based payment transactions with a net settlement feature for withholding tax obligations; and a modification to the terms and 
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the classification of the transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled. 
The standard is effective for accounting periods on or after 1 January 2018. The Group has implemented the standard and 
no retrospective adjustments were made. 
  
New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted 
Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2015-2017 cycle was issued on 12 December 2017 and addresses the following 
amendments:  
 
 - IFRS 3 "Business combinations" clarifies that an acquirer is to remeasure the fair value of previously held interests at 
acquisition date.  
 
 - IFRS 11 "Joint arrangements" states that when a party subsequently obtains joint control, it must not remeasure its 
previously held interest.  
 
 - IAS 12 "Income taxes" applies to income tax consequences of dividends recognised on or after the beginning of the earliest 
comparative period presented. 
 
 - IAS 23 "Borrowing costs" clarified that once a qualifying asset funded through specific borrowings becomes ready for its 
intended use or sale, the rate applied on those borrowings is included in the determination of the capitalisation rate applied 
to general borrowings. 
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Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

Going concern 
The consolidated financial position of the Group shows a positive net and current asset position at 31 August 2020. 

The Group made a profit before tax for year of £500,385 (2019: loss before tax of £693,221) and as at 31 August 2020 the 
Group had a net cash balance of £6,508,973. At 31 October 2020, the group had a net cash balance in excess of £7.1 million. 

The Group made an operating profit of £506,893 (2019: profit of £53,001) before exceptional items. 

The Group's strategy to achieve profitability is through focus on continuing to grow its two core brands, Interhigh and 
Academy21. The Directors believe that the Group has reached an appropriate level of operational gearing in order to achieve 
ongoing sustainable profitability.  

The Directors have prepared and reviewed the Group's cash forecast and projections for the next 12 months. Based upon 
these projections and analyses the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and at least 12 months from the approval of these accounts and 
to be able to meet its debts as and when they fall due. 

In light of this, the Directors consider the going concern basis to be appropriate to the preparation of the financial statements 
of the Group.   

Basis of preparation 
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards ('IFRS') and the Companies Act 2006, as appropriate for for-profit oriented entities. 

Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for, where applicable, the 
revaluation of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income, investment properties, certain classes of property, plant and equipment and derivative financial 
instruments. 

Critical accounting estimates 
The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the group's and company's accounting policies. The areas 
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the 
financial statements, are disclosed in note 2. 

Principles of consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Wey Education plc ('company' 
or 'parent entity') as at 31 August 2020 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. Wey Education plc and its 
subsidiaries together are referred to in these financial statements as the 'group'. 

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the group is exposed 
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its 
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to 
the group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. 

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entities in the group are eliminated. 
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset transferred. 
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by 
the group. 

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. A change in ownership interest, 
without the loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction, where the difference between the consideration 
transferred and the book value of the share of the non-controlling interest acquired is recognised directly in equity attributable 
to the parent. 
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Where the group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets including goodwill, liabilities and non-controlling 
interest in the subsidiary together with any cumulative translation differences recognised in equity. The group recognises the 
fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any investment retained together with any gain or loss in profit 
or loss. 
  
Interests in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost, less any impairment, in the parent entity. Dividends received from 
subsidiaries are recognised as other income by the parent entity and its receipt may be an indicator of an impairment of the 
investment. 
  
Revenue recognition 
The group recognises revenue as follows: 
  
Revenue from contracts with customers 
Turnover is stated net of VAT and trade discounts and is recognised when the significant risks and rewards are considered 
to have been transferred to the customer. Turnover from the supply of services represents the value of services provided 
under contracts to the extent that there is a right to consideration and is recorded at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable. Where a contract has only been partially completed at the balance sheet date turnover represents 
the fair value of the service provided to date based on the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet 
date. Where payments are received from customers in advance of services provided, the amounts are recorded as deferred 
income and included as part of creditors due within one year.  Deposits received from customers are not recognised as 
income. At the end of the contract they are returned to customers or set-off against amount due from the customer. 
  
Interest 
Interest revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the 
amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the 
net carrying amount of the financial asset. 
  
Other revenue 
Other revenue is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established. 
  
Income tax 
The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on that period's taxable income based on the applicable 
income tax rate for each jurisdiction, adjusted by the changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary 
differences, unused tax losses and the adjustment recognised for prior periods, where applicable. 
  
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to be applied when the 
assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted, except for: 
●  When the deferred income tax asset or liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a 

transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting nor 
taxable profits; or 

●  When the taxable temporary difference is associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, and the 
timing of the reversal can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future. 

  
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 
  
The carrying amount of recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. Deferred tax 
assets recognised are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that future taxable profits will be available for the 
carrying amount to be recovered. Previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that there are future taxable profits available to recover the asset. 
  
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities; and they relate to the same taxable authority on 
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend to settle simultaneously. 
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Discontinued operations 
A discontinued operation is a component of the group that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and that 
represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan to 
dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The 
results of discontinued operations are presented separately on the face of the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. 
  
Current and non-current classification 
Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current classification. 
  
An asset is classified as current when: it is either expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the group's 
normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the 
reporting period; or the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current. 
  
A liability is classified as current when: it is either expected to be settled in the group's normal operating cycle; it is held 
primarily for the purpose of trading; it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or there is no 
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other liabilities 
are classified as non-current. 
  
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current. 
  
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
  
Trade and other receivables 
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less any allowance for expected credit losses.  
  
The group has applied the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss 
allowance. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on days overdue. 
  
Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses. 
  
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or have been transferred and the 
group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. When there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovering part or all of a financial asset, it's carrying value is written off. 
  
Financial assets at amortised cost 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are met: (i) it is held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and (ii) the contractual terms of the financial 
asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. 
  
Impairment of financial assets 
The group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets which are either measured at amortised 
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. The measurement of the loss allowance depends upon the group's 
assessment at the end of each reporting period as to whether the financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly 
since initial recognition, based on reasonable and supportable information that is available, without undue cost or effort to 
obtain. 
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Where there has not been a significant increase in exposure to credit risk since initial recognition, a 12-month expected credit 
loss allowance is estimated. This represents a portion of the asset's lifetime expected credit losses that is attributable to a 
default event that is possible within the next 12 months. Where a financial asset has become credit impaired or where it is 
determined that credit risk has increased significantly, the loss allowance is based on the asset's lifetime expected credit 
losses. The amount of expected credit loss recognised is measured on the basis of the probability weighted present value of 
anticipated cash shortfalls over the life of the instrument discounted at the original effective interest rate. 
  
For financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the loss allowance is 
recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding expense through profit or loss. In all other cases, the loss 
allowance reduces the asset's carrying value with a corresponding expense through profit or loss. 
  
Property, plant and equipment 
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s 
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial 
period in which they are incurred. 
  
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the net cost of each item of property, plant and equipment over 
their expected useful lives as follows: 
  
Office equipment  20% on cost and 33.33% on cost 
Leasehold improvements  20% on cost 
Fixtures and fittings  10% on cost 
  
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. 
  
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life of the assets, 
whichever is shorter. 
  
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no future economic benefit to the 
group. Gains and losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds are taken to profit or loss. 
  
Right-of-use assets 
A right-of-use asset is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which 
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date net of any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred, and, except where included in the 
cost of inventories, an estimate of costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and removing the underlying asset, and 
restoring the site or asset. 
  
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful 
life of the asset, whichever is the shorter. Where the group expects to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the 
lease term, the depreciation is over its estimated useful life. Right-of use assets are subject to impairment or adjusted for 
any remeasurement of lease liabilities. 
  
The group has elected not to recognise a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for short-term leases with terms 
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. Lease payments on these assets are expensed to profit or loss as 
incurred. 
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Intangible assets 
Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination, other than goodwill, are initially measured at their fair value at 
the date of the acquisition. Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost. Indefinite life intangible 
assets are not amortised and are subsequently measured at cost less any impairment. Finite life intangible assets are 
subsequently measured at cost less amortisation and any impairment. The gains or losses recognised in profit or loss arising 
from the derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the intangible asset. The method and useful lives of finite life intangible assets are reviewed annually. Changes in 
the expected pattern of consumption or useful life are accounted for prospectively by changing the amortisation method or 
period. 
  
Goodwill 
Intangible assets comprise goodwill obtained on the acquisition of the InterHigh business and the acquisition of the entire 
share capital of Academy 21 Limited. 
 
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Company’s share of the net identifiable 
assets of the acquired business at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired and is carried at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses. 
 
Goodwill is allocated to CGUs for the purpose of impairment testing. 
  
A CGU is identified at the lowest aggregation of assets that generate largely independent cash inflows, and that which is 
looked at by management for monitoring and managing the business. 
 
If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the 
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the income statement and is not 
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold. 
  
Research and development 
Research costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Development costs are capitalised when it is probable 
that the project will be a success considering its commercial and technical feasibility; the group is able to use or sell the 
asset; the group has sufficient resources and intent to complete the development; and its costs can be measured reliably. 
Capitalised development costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected benefit, being their 
finite life of 10 years. 
  
Patents and trademarks 
Significant costs associated with patents and trademarks are deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis over the period 
of their expected benefit, being their finite life of 10 years. 
  
Software 
Significant costs associated with software are deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected 
benefit, being their finite life of 5 years. 
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Other intangible assets 
Purchased software and internally developed software: Software acquired by the Company which has a finite useful life is 
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Expenditure on the research 
phase of projects to develop new customised software is recognised as an expense as incurred. 
 
Costs that are directly attributable to a project’s development phase are recognised as intangible assets, provided they meet 
the following criteria: 
 
•                     the development cost can be measured reliably; 
•                     the project is technically feasible and viable; 
•                     the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete the project; 
•                     the Company has the ability to use or sell the software; and 
•                     the software will generate probable future economic benefits. 
 
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. Intangible assets arising on 
acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses are recognised separately from goodwill if the fair value of these assets can be 
identified separately and measured reliably. 
  
Impairment of non-financial assets 
Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount. 
  
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. The value-in-use is the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows relating to the asset using a pre-tax discount rate specific to the asset or 
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Assets that do not have independent cash flows are grouped together to 
form a cash-generating unit. 
  
Trade and other payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the group prior to the end of the financial year and 
which are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature they are measured at amortised cost and are not discounted. The amounts 
are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. 
  
Lease liabilities 
A lease liability is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognised at the present 
value of the lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, 
if that rate cannot be readily determined, the group's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments comprise of fixed payments 
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be 
paid under residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option when the exercise of the option is reasonably 
certain to occur, and any anticipated termination penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or 
a rate are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 
  
Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are remeasured 
if there is a change in the following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a rate used; residual 
guarantee; lease term; certainty of a purchase option and termination penalties. When a lease liability is remeasured, an 
adjustment is made to the corresponding right-of use asset, or to profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset 
is fully written down. 
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Employee benefits 
  
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service payment due on retirement or termination are recognised when they 
accrue to the employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service payment as a result 
of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. The estimated liability is calculated net of expected 
reduction from benefits available from social security funds. 
 
Employee entitlements to sick leave and other non-accumulating compensated absences are not recognised until the time 
of leave. 
 
Pension contributions paid to or on behalf of employees are expensed as they accrue. 
 
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Company commits itself to terminate employment or to provide 
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal. 
  
Share-based payments 
Equity-settled share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees. 
  
The cost of share-based employee compensation arrangements, whereby directors and employees receive remuneration in 
the form of shares or share options and share-based payments to suppliers, is recognised as an expense in the income 
statement. The total expense to be apportioned over the vesting period of the benefit is determined by reference to the fair 
value (excluding the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) at the date of grant. The assumptions underlying the 
number of awards expected to vest are subsequently adjusted for the effects of non market-based vesting to reflect the 
conditions prevailing at the balance sheet date. Fair value is measured by the use of a Black-Scholes pricing model. The 
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on the directors’ best estimate, for the effects of the non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations. An Option Reserve has been established and contains 
the share options which are outstanding at the balance sheet date. 
  
Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, an incremental value is calculated as the difference between the 
fair value of the repriced option and the fair value of the original option at the date of re-pricing. This incremental value is 
then recognised as an expense over the remaining vesting period in addition to the amount recognised in respect of the 
original option grant. 
  
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled or settled (that is, cancelled with some form of compensation) it is treated as if it 
had vested on the date of cancellation and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised 
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award and is designated as a replacement award on 
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as 
described in the previous paragraph. Any compensation paid up to the fair value of the award is accounted for as a deduction 
from equity. Where an award is cancelled by forfeiture, when the vesting conditions are not satisfied, any costs already 
recognised are reversed.. 
  
Fair value measurement 
When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure purposes, the fair 
value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaction will take place either: in the principal 
market; or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market. 
  
Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming 
they act in their economic best interests. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement is based on its highest and 
best use. Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, are used, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable 
inputs. 
  
Issued capital 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. 
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Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, 
from the proceeds. 
  
Business combinations 
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations regardless of whether equity instruments 
or other assets are acquired. 
  
The consideration transferred is the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred, equity instruments 
issued or liabilities incurred by the acquirer to former owners of the acquiree and the amount of any non-controlling interest 
in the acquiree. For each business combination, the non-controlling interest in the acquiree is measured at either fair value 
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. All acquisition costs are expensed as incurred to profit 
or loss. 
  
On the acquisition of a business, the group assesses the financial assets acquired and liabilities assumed for appropriate 
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic conditions, the group's operating or 
accounting policies and other pertinent conditions in existence at the acquisition-date. 
  
Where the business combination is achieved in stages, the group remeasures its previously held equity interest in the 
acquiree at the acquisition-date fair value and the difference between the fair value and the previous carrying amount is 
recognised in profit or loss. 
  
Contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at the acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent 
changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is recognised in profit or loss. 
Contingent consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. 
  
The difference between the acquisition-date fair value of assets acquired, liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest 
in the acquiree and the fair value of the consideration transferred and the fair value of any pre-existing investment in the 
acquiree is recognised as goodwill. If the consideration transferred and the pre-existing fair value is less than the fair value 
of the identifiable net assets acquired, being a bargain purchase to the acquirer, the difference is recognised as a gain directly 
in profit or loss by the acquirer on the acquisition-date, but only after a reassessment of the identification and measurement 
of the net assets acquired, the non-controlling interest in the acquiree, if any, the consideration transferred and the acquirer's 
previously held equity interest in the acquirer. 
  
Business combinations are initially accounted for on a provisional basis. The acquirer retrospectively adjusts the provisional 
amounts recognised and also recognises additional assets or liabilities during the measurement period, based on new 
information obtained about the facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition-date. The measurement period ends 
on either the earlier of (i) 12 months from the date of the acquisition or (ii) when the acquirer receives all the information 
possible to determine fair value. 
  
Earnings per share 
  
Basic earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of Wey Education plc, excluding any 
costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the financial year. 
  
Diluted earnings per share 
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the 
after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted 
average number of shares assumed to have been issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares. 
  
Value-Added Tax ('VAT') and other similar taxes 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated VAT, unless the VAT incurred is not 
recoverable from the tax authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as part of 
the expense. 
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Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of VAT receivable or payable. The net amount of VAT 
recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included in other receivables or other payables in the statement of 
financial position. 
  
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority. 
  
Cash Flow 
The Group has elected to disclose its cash flows from operating activities using the indirect method that requires the profit 
or loss to be adjusted for the effects of non-cash movements, changes in working capital and items relating to investing and 
finance activities.  
  
Accounting Standards that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet mandatory, have not been early adopted 
by the group for the annual reporting period ended 31 August 2020. The group has not yet assessed the impact of these 
new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations. 
  

Note 2. Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
  
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in 
relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its judgements, estimates and 
assumptions on historical experience and on other various factors, including expectations of future events, management 
believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal 
the related actual results. The judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities (refer to the respective notes) within the next financial year are 
discussed below. 
  
Share-based payment transactions 
The consolidated entity measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the 
equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by using either the Black-Scholes 
model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted and requires assumptions to 
be made including the future volatility of the Company's share price, The accounting estimates and assumptions relating to 
equity-settled share-based payments would have no impact on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
annual reporting period but may impact profit or loss and equity. 
  
Allowance for expected credit losses 
The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based on the 
lifetime expected credit loss, grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected credit 
loss rate for each group. These assumptions include recent sales experience and historical collection rates. 
 
The amount of any loss is recognised in the income statement within administrative expenses.  
  
Fair value measurement hierarchy 
The group is required to classify all assets and liabilities, measured at fair value, using a three level hierarchy, based on the 
lowest level of input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement, being: Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date; Level 2: Inputs other than 
quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and Level 3: 
Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Considerable judgement is required to determine what is significant to fair value 
and therefore which category the asset or liability is placed in can be subjective. 
  
The fair value of assets and liabilities classified as level 3 is determined by the use of valuation models. These include 
discounted cash flow analysis or the use of observable inputs that require significant adjustments based on unobservable 
inputs. 
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Estimation of useful lives of assets 
The group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property, plant 
and equipment and finite life intangible assets. The useful lives could change significantly as a result of technical innovations 
or some other event. The depreciation and amortisation charge will increase where the useful lives are less than previously 
estimated lives, or technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold will be written off or written 
down. 
  
Goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets 
The group tests annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate impairment, whether goodwill 
and other indefinite life intangible assets have suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in 
note 1. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These 
calculations require the use of assumptions, including estimated discount rates based on the current cost of capital and 
growth rates of the estimated future cash flows. 
  
Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets 
The group assesses impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets at each 
reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the group and to the particular asset that may lead to impairment. If an 
impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. This involves fair value less costs of disposal 
or value-in-use calculations, which incorporate a number of key estimates and assumptions. 
  
Income tax 
The group is subject to income taxes in the jurisdictions in which it operates. Significant judgement is required in determining 
the provision for income tax. There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business 
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based 
on the group's current understanding of the tax law. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the carrying 
amounts, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is 
made. 
  
Recovery of deferred tax assets 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences only if the group considers it is probable that future 
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 
  
Business combinations 
As discussed in note 1, business combinations are initially accounted for on a provisional basis. The fair value of assets 
acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed are initially estimated by the group taking into consideration all available 
information at the reporting date. Fair value adjustments on the finalisation of the business combination accounting is 
retrospective, where applicable, to the period the combination occurred and may have an impact on the assets and liabilities, 
depreciation and amortisation reported. 
  

Note 3. Geographical Analysis of Turnover 
  
Disaggregation of revenue 
The disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers is as follows: 
  
  United  Europe  Middle  Africa  Other   Asia    
  Kingdom    East    Countries  Pacific  Total 
Consolidated - 2020  £  £  £  £  £  £  £ 
               
Online Education  6,844,107  637,157  392,262  42,503  353,588  94,435  8,364,052 
Other  2,150  -  210  -  -  -  2,360 
               
  6,846,257  637,157  392,472  42,503  353,588  94,435  8,366,412 
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  United  Europe  Middle  Africa  Other    
  Kingdom    East    Countries  Total 
Consolidated - 2019  £  £  £  £  £  £ 
             
Online Education  5,160,186  352,289  260,082  39,117  237,696  6,049,370 
Other  5,668  -  -  -  -  5,668 
             
  5,165,854  352,289  260,082  39,117  237,696  6,055,038 
  
Sales are allocated based on the country in which the customer is located 
  

Note 4. Expenses 
  
The profit/(loss) for the year form continuing activities is stated after charging: 
  
  Consolidated 
  2020  2019 
  £  £ 
     
Profit/(loss) before income tax from continuing operations includes the following specific 
expenses: 

 
 
 

 
     
Depreciation     
Leasehold improvements  26,872   20,468  
Buildings right-of-use assets  41,710   -   
Office equipment  52,962   43,727  
     
Total depreciation  121,544   64,195  
     
Amortisation     
Trademarks and brands  10,000   18,468  
Software  75,444   112,173  
Other intangible assets  32,083   70,000  
     
Total amortisation  117,527   200,641  
     
Total depreciation and amortisation  239,071   264,836  
     
Employee benefits expense     
Share-based payments  74,513   109,060  
     
Exceptional items     
Legal costs  -    8,787  
Termination and restructuring costs  -    252,205  
Onerous lease costs  -    174,627  
     
Total exceptional items  -    435,619  
  
Termination and restructuring costs in the prior year relate to the termination costs for David Massie and other employees 
as a result of the restructuring of the group's operations during the prior year.  
  
Onerous lease costs in the prior year relate to the costs of the group's previous Head office and London Learning Centre.  
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Note 5. Average number of employees and employee benefits expense 
  
The average number of employees during the year was as follows: 
  
  Consolidated 
  2020  2019 
     
Directors  7   6  
Teaching  98   75  
Sales and administration  36   26  
     
Average number of employees  141   107  
  
The employee benefits expense during the year was as follows: 
  
  Consolidated 
  2020  2019 
  £  £ 
     
Wages and salaries  4,158,939   3,062,767  
Directors' remuneration   560,164   414,884  
Equity based share payments  74,513   109,060  
Directors Pensions  65,645   13,148  
Staff pensions  117,130   60,171  
Social security costs  468,286   341,947  
     
Total employee benefits expense  5,444,677   4,001,977  
  
Key management personnel, as defined by IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ have been identified as the Board of Directors, 
as the controls operated by the Group ensure that all key decisions are reserved for the Board of Directors. Detailed 
disclosures of the directors’ individual’s remuneration and pension contributions and the aggregate amount of key 
management remuneration for those directors who served during the year are set out in note 6. 
  

Note 6. Directors' remuneration 
  
Dr Sara Isabelle de Freitas was appointed as a Director on 23 January 2020 and the costs disclosed reflect remuneration 
received from this date.  
 
Dame Erica Christine Pienaar resigned as a Director on 30 June 2020 and the costs disclosed reflect remuneration up to 
that date.  
  
During the year the cost of equity based share awards relating to the Directors amounted to £55,943 (2019: £63,047) 
  
  Consolidated 
  2020  2019 
  £  £ 
     
Aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services  635,058   428,032  
Aggregate amounts of contributions to pension schemes in respect of qualifying services  66,126   13,148  
Highest paid director - aggregate remuneration  184,859   147,193  
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Note 7. Income tax 
  
  Consolidated 
  2020  2019 
  £  £ 
     
Income tax expense/(benefit)     
Adjustment recognised for prior periods  -    (7,804) 
     
Aggregate income tax benefit  -    (7,804) 
     
Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense/(benefit) and tax at the statutory rate     
Profit/(loss) before income tax benefit from continuing operations  500,385   (380,691) 
Loss before income tax expense from discontinued operations  -    (312,530) 
     
  500,385   (693,221) 
     
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 19%  95,073   (131,712) 
     
Adjustment recognised for prior periods  -    (7,804) 
Current year tax losses not recognised  -    124,476  
Change in accounting policy  -    (20,042) 
Consolidation adjustments  -    (37,908) 
Non-deductible items  2,499   110,073  
Capital allowances  -    (44,887) 
Income not taxable  (363)  -   
Deferred tax movement not provided  (161,278)  -   
Share based payments  (305,228)  -   
     
Income tax expense/(benefit)  (369,297)  (7,804) 
  

Note 8. Discontinued operations 
  
Description 
During the prior year, the group took the decision to cease its operations in China, Kenya and Nigeria. Therefore the financial 
results from these entities was determined as follows.  
  
Financial performance information 
  
  Consolidated Parent 
  2020  2019  2020  2019 
  £  £  £  £ 
         
Discontinued operations  -    (312,530)  -    (140,114) 
         
Loss before income tax expense  -    (312,530)  -    (140,114) 
Income tax expense  -    -    -    -   
         
Loss after income tax expense from discontinued operations  -    (312,530)  -    (140,114) 
  



Wey Education plc 
Notes to the financial statements 
31 August 2020 
 

  

  
51 

Note 9. Earnings per share 
  
  Consolidated 
  2020  2019 
  £  £ 
     
Earnings per share for profit/(loss) from continuing operations     
Profit/(loss) after income tax attributable to the owners of Wey Education plc  869,682   (372,887) 
  
  Number  Number 
     
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating basic earnings per share  138,001,489  130,781,092 
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:     

Options over ordinary shares  2,731,761  - 
     
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating diluted earnings per share  140,733,250  130,781,092 
  
  Pence  Pence 
     
Basic earnings/(loss) per share  0.63  (0.29) 
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share  0.62  (0.29) 
  
  Consolidated 
  2020  2019 
  £  £ 
     
Earnings per share for loss from discontinued operations     
Loss after income tax attributable to the owners of Wey Education plc  -    (312,530) 
  
  Number  Number 
     
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating basic earnings per share  138,001,489  130,781,092 
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:     

Options over ordinary shares  2,731,761  - 
     
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating diluted earnings per share  140,733,250  130,781,092 
  
  Pence  Pence 
     
Basic earnings/(loss) per share  -  (0.24) 
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share  -  (0.24) 
  
  Consolidated 
  2020  2019 
  £  £ 
     
Earnings per share for profit/(loss)     
Profit/(loss) after income tax attributable to the owners of Wey Education plc  869,682   (685,417) 
  
  Number  Number 
     
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating basic earnings per share  138,001,489  130,781,092 
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:     

Options over ordinary shares  2,731,761  - 
     
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating diluted earnings per share  140,733,250  130,781,092 
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  Pence  Pence 
     
Basic earnings/(loss) per share  0.63  (0.52) 
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share  0.62  (0.52) 
  

Note 10. Current assets - trade and other receivables 
  
  Consolidated Parent 
  2020  2019  2020  2019 
  £  £  £  £ 
         
Trade receivables  891,184   862,781   1,620   -   
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  (386,178)  (364,503)  -    -   
  505,006   498,278   1,620   -   
         
Other receivables  262,669   117,434   18   48,641  
VAT  24,291   -    36,552   -   
Amounts due from group undertakings  -    -    294,548   558,401  
Prepayments  183,132   119,622   158,569   111,731  
         
  975,098   735,334   491,307   718,773  
  
Aged analysis of trade receivables: 
  
  Consolidated  Consolidated 
  2020  2019 
  £  £ 
     
Not due  125,330  - 
Current term  198,438  295,047 
One term  77,189  112,670 
Two terms  64,725  134,877 
Three terms and older  425,502  320,187 
     
  891,184  862,781 
  
Allowance for expected credit losses 
The group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss 
allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets. 
 
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics 
and the days past due.  
 
The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before 31 August 2020 and 
the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect 
current and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the 
receivables.  
 
The group holds customer deposits against some trade receivables to protect the group from credit risk. Where applicable, 
the deposit held has been netted off the relevant balance when calculating the loss allowance.  
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  Expected   Gross  Loss  Expected  Gross  Loss 

 
 
loss rate 2020 

 
amount 2020 

 allowance 
2020 

 
loss rate 2019 

 
amount 2019 

 allowance 
2019 

  %  £  £  %  £  £ 
             
Not due  -  125,330  -  -  -  - 
Current term  2.90%   198,438  5,740  2.50%   295,047  7,309 
One term  38.60%   77,189  29,779  17.90%   112,670  20,188 
Two terms  72.80%   64,725  47,124  72.40%   134,877  97,703 
Three terms and older  98.40%   425,502  418,725  96.50%   320,187  308,958 
    891,184  501,368    862,781  434,158 
             
Deposits  -  -  (115,190)  -  -  (69,655) 
             
TOTAL    891,184  386,178    862,781  364,503 
  
Movements in the impairment allowance for trade receivables are as follows: 
  
  2020  2019 
  £  £ 
     
     
At 1 September   364,503  84,181 
Restatement of comparative balance under IFRS9  -  105,485 
Opening provision for impairment of trade receivables  364,503  189,666 
     
Increase during the year  135,925  177,037 
Unused amounts reversed  (5,826)  (2,200) 
Impairment loss during the year  130,099  174,837 
     
Balances written off (net of deposits)  (108,424)  - 
     
At 31 August  386,178  364,503 
  

Note 11. Current assets - cash and cash equivalents 
  
  Consolidated Parent 
  2020  2019  2020  2019 
  £  £  £  £ 
         
Cash at bank  6,508,973   4,961,373   2,806,006   1,084,125  
  

Note 12. Non-current assets - Goodwill 
  
  Consolidated Parent 
  2020  2019  2020  2019 
  £  £  £  £ 
         
Goodwill - cost  1,707,339   1,707,339   76,400   76,400  
Amortisation  (76,400)  (76,400)  (76,400)  (76,400) 
         
  1,630,939   1,630,939   -    -   
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Goodwill represents the following:  
 
• the excess of the consideration transferred and transferable, over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired in 
relation to the InterHigh business. The net book value at 31 August 2020 and 31 August 2019 was £201,217;  
 
• the excess of the consideration transferred and transferable, over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired in 
relation to the entity Academy 21 Limited. The net book value at 31 August 2020 and 31 August 2019 was £1,429,722.  
 
Goodwill arising on business combinations (representing the excess of fair value of the consideration given over the fair 
value of the separable net assets acquired) is capitalised, and its subsequent measurement is based on annual impairment 
reviews, with any impairment losses recognised immediately in the income statement. Direct costs of acquisition are 
recognised immediately in the income statement as an expense. 
  

Note 13. Non-current assets - Investment in subsidiaries 
  
  Consolidated Parent 
  2020  2019  2020  2019 
  £  £  £  £ 
         
Investment in subsidiaries  -    -    1,702,107   1,702,107  
         
Reconciliation         
Reconciliation of the carrying amounts at the beginning and 
end of the current and previous financial year are set out 
below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
         
Opening carrying amount  -    -    1,702,107   1,925,332  
Impairment of assets  -    -    -    (223,225) 
         
Closing carrying amount  -    -    1,702,107   1,702,107  
  
In the prior year, the company has impaired its investments in its overseas subsidiaries as a result of its decision to terminate 
operations in these territories. 
  
Please refer to note 32 for further information on subsidiaries.  
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Note 14. Non-current assets - Intangibles 
  

Consolidated 
 

Software 
 Other 

Intangible 
 Trade Marks 

and 
 

Total 
    Assets  Brands   
  £  £  £  £ 
         
Cost         
At 31 August 2019  787,846  350,000  108,836  1,246,682 
Additions  78,800  -  -  78,800 
Disposal  -  -  (8,836)  (8,836) 
At 31 August 2020  866,646  350,000  100,000  1,316,646 
         
Amortisation         
At 31 August 2019  424,885  317,917  54,252  797,054 
Charge for the period  75,444  32,083  10,000  117,527 
Eliminated on disposal  -  -  (8,836)  (8,836) 
At 31 August 2020  500,329  350,000  55,416  905,745 
         
At 31 August 2020  366,317  -  44,584  410,901 
At 31 August 2019  362,961  32,083  54,584  449,628 
  
Parent  Software   
  Development  TOTAL 
  £  £ 
     
At 31 August 2019  387,842  387,842 
Additions  78,800  78,800 
At 31 August 2020  466,642  466,642 
     
At 31 August 2019  61,552  61,552 
Amortisation  38,779  38,779 
At 31 August 2020  100,331  100,331 
     
At 31 August 2020  366,311  366,311 
At 31 August 2019  326,290  326,290 
  
Software acquired in material business combinations is capitalised at its fair value as determined by the directors. Software 
in development is capitalised with related development costs and once complete will be written off over the estimated 
economic life. The net book value at 31 August 2020 of £366,317 (2019: £362,961) consisted of  
 
- £210,963 (2019: £238,674) of software developed which will be written off over its remaining estimated useful economic 
life of 7 years,  
 
- £76,554 of software developed which will be written off over its remaining estimated useful economic life of 8 years and  
 
- £78,800 of software in development which will be written off over its estimated useful economic life once brought into use.  
 
Other intangible assets include the technology platform and the electronic library of materials which were acquired in material 
business combinations and have been capitalised at fair value as determined by the directors. The net book value at 31 
August 2020 of £Nil (2019: £32,083) has been fully amortised during the year.  
 
Trademarks and brands acquired in material business combinations are capitalised at its fair value as determined by the 
directors. The net book value at 31 August 2020 consists of £44,584 (2019: £54,584) will be written off over an estimated 
remaining useful economic life of 4.4 years. 
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Note 15. Non-current assets - Property, Plant and Equipment 
  
Consolidated  Leasehold  Office   
  Improvements  Equipment  Total 
  £  £  £ 
       
Cost       
At 31 August 2019  101,894  195,349  297,243 
Additions  -  104,751  104,751 
Disposals  -  (9,522)  (9,522) 
At 31 August 2020  101,894  290,578  392,472 
       
Depreciation       
At 31 August 2019  32,644  93,609  126,253 
Charge for the year  26,872  52,962  79,834 
Eliminated on disposal  -  (9,196)  (9,196) 
At 31 August 2020  59,516  137,375  196,891 
       
Net book value       
At 31 August 2020  42,378  153,204  195,582 
At 31 August 2019  69,250  101,740  170,990 
  
Parent  Leasehold  Office   
  Improvements  Equipment  Total 
  £  £  £ 
       
Cost       
At 31 August 2019  101,894  123,620  225,514 
Additions  -  103,991  103,991 
Disposals  -  (782)  (782) 
At 31 August 2020  101,894  226,829  328,723 
       
Depreciation       
At 31 August 2019  32,644  50,952  83,596 
Charge for the year  26,872  42,908  69,780 
Eliminated on disposal  -  (456)  (456) 
At 31 August 2020  59,516  93,404  152,920 
       
Net book value       
At 31 August 2020  42,378  133,425  175,803 
At 31 August 2019  69,250  72,668  141,918 
  

Note 16. Non-current assets - right-of-use assets 
  
  Consolidated Parent 
  2020  2019  2020  2019 
  £  £  £  £ 
         
Land and buildings - right-of-use - Initial recognition under 
IFRS16 

 
199,395  

 
-   

 
199,395  

 
-   

Less: Depreciation charge for the year  (41,710)  -    (41,710)  -   
         
  157,685   -    157,685   -   
  
For further detail on the adoption of IFRS16 please see note 30. 
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Note 17. Non-current assets - deferred tax 
  
  Consolidated 
  2020  2019 
  £  £ 
     
Deferred tax asset comprises temporary differences attributable to:     
     
Amounts recognised in profit or loss:     

Tax losses  192,542   -   
Temporary timing differences  176,735   -   
Employee benefits  2,217   -   

     
Deferred tax asset  371,494   -   
     
Movements:     
Opening balance  -    -   
Credited to profit or loss (note 7)  388,074   -   
Charged to equity (note 7)  (16,580)  -   
     
Closing balance  371,494   -   
  

Note 18. Current liabilities - trade and other payables 
  
  Consolidated Parent 
  2020  2019  2020  2019 
  £  £  £  £ 
         
Trade payables  384,418   161,895   316,726   144,757  
Other creditors  57,860   22,687   32,742   5,055  
VAT payable  -    27,220   -    5,146  
Social security and other taxes  144,886   112,102   25,802   37,480  
         
  587,164   323,904   375,270   192,438  
  
Refer to note 27 for further information on financial instruments. 
  
All trade and other payables are payable within twelve months from the end of the reporting period 
  

Note 19. Current liabilities - other 
  
  Consolidated Parent 
  2020  2019  2020  2019 
  £  £  £  £ 
         
Accrued expenses  319,038   621,711   198,482   474,259  
Deferred revenue  690,219   25,523   -    -   
Revenue received in advance  169,340   452,783   -    -   
Refundable deposits  1,417,117   765,050   -    -   
         
  2,595,714   1,865,067   198,482   474,259  
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Note 20. Current liabilities - lease liabilities 
  
  Consolidated Parent 
  2020  2019  2020  2019 
  £  £  £  £ 
         
Lease liability  39,959   -    39,959   -   
  
Refer to note 27 for further information on financial instruments. 
  
Refer to note 30 for further information on the implementation of IFRS16.  
  

Note 21. Non-current liabilities - lease liabilities 
  
  Consolidated Parent 
  2020  2019  2020  2019 
  £  £  £  £ 
         
Lease liability  119,892   -    119,892   -   
  
Refer to note 27 for further information on financial instruments. 
  
Refer to note 30 for further information on the implementation of IFRS16.  
  

Note 22. Non-current liabilities - deferred tax 
  
  Consolidated 
  2020  2019 
  £  £ 
     
Deferred tax liability comprises temporary differences attributable to:     
     
Amounts recognised in profit or loss:     

Property, plant and equipment  18,777   -   
     
Deferred tax liability  18,777   -   
     
Movements:     
Opening balance  -    -   
Charged to profit or loss (note 7)  18,777   -   
     
Closing balance  18,777   -   
  

Note 23. Equity - issued capital 
  
  Consolidated 
  2020  2019  2020  2019 
  Shares  Shares  £  £ 
         
Ordinary shares - fully paid  138,478,613  131,207,120  1,384,787   1,312,072  
  
Ordinary shares 
Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on the winding up of the company in proportion 
to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. The fully paid ordinary shares have no par value and the company 
does not have a limited amount of authorised capital. 
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On a show of hands every member present at a meeting in person or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll each 
share shall have one vote. 
  
On 19 September 2019 the Company issued 1,000,000 Ordinary shares of £0.01 pence at an issue price of £0.045 pence 
per share, 850,514 Ordinary shares of £0.01 pence at an issue price of £0.0388 pence per share and 3,333,333 Ordinary 
shares of £0.01 pence per share at par.  
 
On 15 November 2019 the Company issued 1,000,000 Ordinary shares of £0.01 pence at an issue price of £0.045 pence 
per share. 
 
On 28 January 2020 the Company issued 399,646 Ordinary shares of £0.01 pence at an issue price of £0.042225 pence per 
share.  
 
On 30 January 2020 the Company issued 200,000 Ordinary shares of £0.01 pence at an issue price of £0.042225 pence per 
share.  
 
On 5 February 2020 the Company issued 200,000 Ordinary shares of £0.01 pence at an issue price of £0.045 pence per 
share. 
 
On 15 April 2020 the Company issued 93,940 Ordinary shares of £0.01 pence at an issue price of £0.04 per share and 
89,060 Ordinary shares of £0.01 pence per share at an issue price of £0.042225 per share 
 
On 5 June 2020 the Company issued 60,000 Ordinary shares of £0.01 pence at an issue price of £0.04 per share. 
 
On 22 June 2020 the Company issued 45,000 Ordinary shares of £0.01 pence at an issue price of £0.042225 per share. 
 
  

Note 24. Equity - reserves 
  
  Consolidated 
  2020  2019 
  £  £ 
     
Share premium reserve  1,659,563   1,530,023  
Options reserve  178,253   200,669  
     
  1,837,816   1,730,692  
  
Share premium 
Share premium represents the difference between the issue price and the par value of ordinary shares issued by the 
Company.  
  
Share-option reserve 
Share option reserve represents the cumulative share-based payment expense for the Company's share option schemes.  
  
Retained profits 
Retained profits represent the cumulative profit and loss net of distributions to owners.  
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Movements in reserves 
Movements in each class of reserve during the current and previous financial year are set out below: 
  
  Share  Option 
  Premium  Reserves 
Consolidated  £  £ 
     
Balance at 1 September 2018  7,515,023  110,323 
Exercise of share options and warrants  15,000  (6,400) 
Equity based share awards  -  96,746 
Capital Reorganisation  (6,000,000)  - 
     
Balance at 31 August 2019  1,530,023  200,669 
Deferred tax  -  (16,580) 
Exercise of share options and warrants  129,539  (74,013) 
Equity based share awards  -  74,514 
Lapse of share options  -  (6,336) 
     
Balance at 31 August 2020  1,659,562  178,254 
  

Note 25. Equity - retained profits 
  
  Consolidated Parent 
  2020  2019  2020  2019 
  £  £  £  £ 
         
Retained profits/(accumulated losses) at the beginning of the 
financial year 

 
2,716,529  

 
(2,604,454) 

 
263,756  

 
(3,796,906) 

Profit/(loss) after income tax benefit for the year  869,682   (685,417)  1,751,625   (1,945,738) 
Transfer from share premium reserve  -    6,000,000   -    6,000,000  
Transfer from options reserve  80,349   6,400   80,349   6,400  
         
Retained profits at the end of the financial year  3,666,560   2,716,529   2,095,730   263,756  
  
On 24 September 2018 at a General Meeting, shareholders voted to effect a capital reduction, transferring £6,000,000 from 
share premium to retained earnings. This put the Company in the position of having distributable reserves. The transfer 
became effective on 21 December 2018 following High Court approval. 
  

Note 26. Equity - dividends 
  
There were no dividends paid, recommended or declared during the current or previous financial year. 
  

Note 27. Financial instruments 
  
Financial risk management objectives 
The group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, price risk and interest 
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The group's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of 
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the group. The group uses 
derivative financial instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge certain risk exposures. Derivatives are 
exclusively used for hedging purposes, i.e. not as trading or other speculative instruments. The group uses different methods 
to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These methods include sensitivity analysis in the case of interest 
rate, foreign exchange and other price risks, ageing analysis for credit risk and beta analysis in respect of investment 
portfolios to determine market risk. 
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Risk management is carried out by senior finance executives ('finance') under policies approved by the Board of Directors 
('the Board'). These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure of the group and appropriate procedures, 
controls and risk limits. Finance identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks within the group's operating units. Finance 
reports to the Board on a monthly basis. 
  
The Company’s financial instruments comprise cash and various other items, such as trade payables and trade receivables 
that arise directly from its operations. The Company’s exposure to its financial instruments are not material and therefore 
derivative financial instruments are not used to manage them.  
  
The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments can be analysed as follows: 
  
Market risk 
  
Foreign currency risk 
The group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currency and is exposed to foreign currency risk through 
foreign exchange rate fluctuations. 
  
The Company has no significant transactions or balances denominated in foreign currencies and holds the majority of cash 
balances in sterling. The directors do not consider the Company to be subject to significant currency risk. 
  
Price risk 
The group is not exposed to any significant price risk. 
  
Interest rate risk 
The Company has no borrowings and on cash balances receives variable rate interest based on UK bank base rates. 
  
Credit risk 
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the group. 
The group has a strict code of credit, including obtaining agency credit information, confirming references and setting 
appropriate credit limits. The group obtains guarantees where appropriate to mitigate credit risk. The maximum exposure to 
credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for impairment of 
those assets, as disclosed in the statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements. The group does not 
hold any collateral. 
  
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the 
consolidated entity. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and credit exposures to customers. For customers in 
its Interhigh business, the group holds deposits to protect from credit risk. The majority of customers in its Academy21 and 
Wey Ecademy businesses are schools and local authorities and the credit risk is therefore deemed to be minimal. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any 
provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the statement of financial position and notes to the financial 
statements.  
  
The group has adopted a lifetime expected loss allowance in estimating expected credit losses to trade receivables through 
the use of a provisions matrix using fixed rates of credit loss provisioning. These provisions are considered representative 
across all customers of the group based on recent sales experience, historical collection rates and forward-looking 
information that is available. 
  
Generally, trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators of this include 
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan, no active enforcement activity and a failure to make contractual 
payments for a period greater than 1 year. 
  
Liquidity risk 
Vigilant liquidity risk management requires the group to maintain sufficient liquid assets (mainly cash and cash equivalents) 
and available borrowing facilities to be able to pay debts as and when they become due and payable. 
  
The group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and available borrowing facilities by continuously 
monitoring actual and forecast cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 
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Fair value of financial instruments 
This note provides details of the Group’s financial instruments. Except where otherwise stated, the disclosures in this note 
exclude retirement benefit assets and obligations.  
 
Liabilities or assets that are not contractual (such as income taxes that are created as a result of statutory requirements 
imposed by governments, prepayments, deferred government grants, provisions and deferred income) are not financial 
assets or financial liabilities and accordingly are excluded from the disclosures provided in this note. The carrying amounts 
of the financial assets and financial liabilities set out below are a reasonable approximation of fair value.  
 
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted for each class of financial asset and financial liability are 
disclosed in the accounting policies note. 
  
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with their carrying amounts in the statement of financial position, 
for the group and company are as follows: 
  
  2020  2019 

 
 Carrying 

amount 
 Carrying 

amount 
Consolidated  £  £ 
     
Assets     
Cash at bank  6,508,973  4,961,631 
Trade receivables  505,006  498,278 
Other receivables  183,132  119,622 
  7,197,111  5,579,531 
     
Liabilities     
Trade payables  384,418  161,895 
Other payables  57,860  22,687 
Accrued expenses  319,038  621,711 
Lease liabilities  159,851  - 
  921,167  806,293 
  
  2020  2019 

 
 Carrying 

amount 
 Carrying 

amount 
Parent  £  £ 
     
Assets     
Cash at bank  2,806,005  1,084,125 
Trade receivables  1,620  - 
Other receivables  18  48,641 
Amounts due from group undertakings  294,548  558,401 
  3,102,191  1,691,167 
     
Liabilities     
Trade payables  316,726  144,757 
Other payables  32,742  5,055 
Accruals  198,482  474,259 
Lease liabilities  159,851  - 
  707,801  624,071 
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Note 28. Auditor remuneration 
  
During the financial year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by , the auditor of the company, and 
its associates: 
  
  Consolidated 
  2020  2019 
  £  £ 
     
Audit and review of the financial statements  18,884   17,750  
Other fees  1,880   15,640  
     
  20,764   33,390  
  

Note 29. Commitments 
  
Expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows: 
  
  Consolidated Parent 
  2020  2019  2020  2019 
  £  £  £  £ 
         
Lease commitments - operating         
Committed at the reporting date but not recognised as 
liabilities, payable: 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Within one year  -    46,558   -    46,558  
One to five years  -    160,181   -    160,181  
More than five years  -    12,066   -    12,066  
         
  -    218,805   -    218,805  
  
Note - the above operating leases have been reclassified in accordance with IFRS16 : Leases. See note 30 for further details.  
 
 
  

Note 30. Implementation of IFRS16 
  
This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases on the group’s financial statements.  
 
The Group applied IFRS 16 from 1 September 2019 and elected to transition to IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective 
approach and has not restated comparatives for the 2019 reporting period, as permitted under the specific transition 
provisions in the standard.   
 
Initial application of IFRS 16 affected leases which had previously been classified as operating leases and are disclosed in 
note 29. At the year end, the Group has no short term or low value operating leases which would be exempt from the 
requirements of IFRS 16.  
 
On adoption of IFRS 16, the group recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been classified as 
‘operating leases’ under the principles of IAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining 
lease payments, discounted at a market rate for a loan of a similar amount and term as of 1 September 2019. 
 
At 1 September 2019, the group recognised right-of-use assets of £199,395 and associated lease liabilities of £195,396.  
  
The reconciliation between the amounts disclosed as operating lease commitments in note 25 and the opening position at 1 
September 2019 is as follows: 
  



Wey Education plc 
Notes to the financial statements 
31 August 2020 
 

  
Note 30. Implementation of IFRS16 (continued) 
 

  

  
64 

Total operating lease commitments at 31 August 2019 (see note 25)  218,805 
Discounted using incremental borrowing rate  (23,409) 
Total finance lease obligation to be recognised at 1 September 2019  195,396 
   
Maturity analysis of finance lease obligation at 1 September 2019   
Within one year  45,567 
Between one and five years  140,463 
After five years  9,366 
  195,396 
   
Classification of the finance lease obligation at 1 September 2019:   
Current liabilities  45,567 
Non-current liabilities  149,829 
  
Measurement of right of use assets 
The associated right-of-use assets for property leases were measured at the amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by 
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet as at 31 August 
2019. 
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Note 31. Related party transactions 
  
Transactions with related parties 
The following transactions occurred with related parties: 
 
During the year to 31 August 2020 the Company was charged £720 (2019: £71,940) by Crimson Tide Plc, in relation to the 
Company’s development of Company's learning platform. At 31 August 2020 the balance due to Crimson Tide Plc amount 
to £Nil (2019: £60,000). 
 
During the year to 31 August 2020 the Company paid Dame E Pienaar £15,116 (2019: £11,560) in relation to education 
services provided to the management of Wey Education Plc. 
 
During the year to 31 August 2020 the Company charged InterHigh Education Limited a management fee of £79,200 inclusive 
of VAT (2019: £83,160 inclusive of VAT) and recharged expenses of £538,652 inclusive of VAT (2019: £442,222 inclusive 
of VAT). At 31 August 2020 the outstanding debt owed by InterHigh Education Limited to Wey Education plc was £101,602 
(2019: £442,222). 
 
During the year to 31 August 2020 the Company charged Wey Ecademy Limited a management fee of £30,000 (2019: 
£30,000) and invoiced salary costs of £118,660 (2019: £102,015). At 31 August 2020 the outstanding debt owed by Wey 
Ecademy Limited (formerly Wey Consultancy Limited) to the Company was £13,594 (2019: £Nil). 
 
At 31 August 2020 Wey Education Services Limited (formerly Wey Consultancy Limited) owed the Company £131,673 (2019: 
£731). 
 
During the year to 31 August 2020 the Company forgave debt of £199 owed by Infinite Education Limited. 
 
During the year to 31 August 2020 the Company forgave debt of £3,831 owed by Quora Lexis Learning Limited. 
 
During the year to 31 August 2020 the Company charged InterHigh Education (No1) Limited a management fee of £30,000 
(2019: £30,000) and recharged expenses of £79,214 (2019: £49,078). At 31 August 2020 the outstanding debt owed by 
InterHigh Education (No 1) Limited was £16,070 (2019: £49,078). 
 
During the year to 31 August 2020 the Company charged Academy 21 Limited a management charge fee of £36,000 inclusive 
of VAT (2019: £36,000 inclusive of VAT) and recharged expenses of £50,863 (2019: £66,634). At 31 August 2020 the 
outstanding debt owed by Academy21 Limited was £31,609 (2019: £66,634). 
 
During the year to 31 August 2020 the Company paid expenses on behalf of Wey Education Limited of £798. 
 
During the year to 31 August 2020 the Company paid expenses on behalf of Wey Education Consulting (Beijing) Limited of 
£5,592. 
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Note 32. Interests in subsidiaries 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries held by the 
company in accordance with the accounting policy described in note 1: 

Proportion 
 Principal place of business / held 

Name  Country of incorporation Class  Activity % 

Interhigh Education Limited  England and Wales Ordinary  Online Education 100% 
Interhigh Education (No 1) Limited  England and Wales Ordinary  Online Education 100% 
Academy21 Limited  England and Wales Ordinary  Online Education 100% 
Wey Ecademy Limited  England and Wales Ordinary  Online Education 100% 
Infinite Education Limited  England and Wales Ordinary  Non-trading 100% 
Infinite Education (No 1) Limited  England and Wales Ordinary  Non-trading 100% 
Quoralexis Learning Limited  England and Wales Ordinary  Non-trading 100% 
Wey Education Services Limited  England and Wales Ordinary  Payroll services 100% 
Wey Education Limited  Kenya Ordinary  Non-trading 100% 

Ordinary 
 Non-trading 

100% 
Wey Education Consulting (Beijing) 
Limited China 

As disclosed in note 13, the company has impaired its investments in: 

- Wey Education Limited; and
- Wey Education Consulting (Beijing) Limited.

Notices were filed with the Registrar of Companies on 18 May 2020 to voluntarily strike off : 

- Infinite Education Limited
- Infinite Education (No 1) Limited; and
- Quoralexis Learning Limited

The three Companies were struck off on 28 September 2020 and dissolved on 6 October 2020. 
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Note 33. Share-based payments 
  
Share Options 
 
 
The Group has a share option scheme for certain directors and employees. Share options are normally exercisable at a price 
equal to the mid-market price of the shares in the Company at the date of the grant. The share options vest immediately or 
during the period of 3 years and some are subject to various performance criteria. The share options are settled in equity if 
exercised. 
 
The reconciliation of share options during the year ended 31 August 2020 is shown below: 
  
  Number Of  Weighted  Weighted  Number Of  Weighted 
  Shares  Average  Average  Exercisable  Average 

 
 

 
 Exercise 
Price (Pence) 

 Remaining 
Life (Years) 

 
Shares 

 Exercise 
Price (Pence) 

           
At 31 August 2018  16,157,869  9.90  7.68  4,833,333  1.81 
Granted in the Year  430,682  9.99  -  -  - 
Exercised in the Year  (500,000)  -  -  -  - 
At 31 August 2019  16,088,551  9.48  7.50  5,195,650  2.19 
Granted in the year  176,762  14.55  -  -  - 
Exercised in the year  (6,420,979)  -  -  -  - 
Lapsed in the year  (590,306)  -  -  -  - 
At 31 August 2020  9,254,028  14.40  5.42  1,684,810  4.04 
  
The 7,569,218 (2019: 11,755,218) Options which are not exercisable at 31 August 2020 consist of: 
 
•         422,343 ordinary shares granted in January 2018 vest based on various non-market based corporate performance 
criteria and 3 years after grant and are exercisable at a price of 30.5 pence; and 
 
•         3,000,000 ordinary shares granted May 2018 vest conditional on the Company’s share price performance vest 
conditional on the Company’s share price performance and 3 year after grant and are exercised at a price of 16.7 pence; 
and 
 
•         3,719,963 ordinary shares granted June 2018 vest based on various non-market based corporate performance criteria 
and 3 years after grant and are exercisable at prices of 15.7 pence; and 
 
•         268,019 ordinary share granted July 2019 vest based on various non-market based corporate performance criteria 
and 3 years after grant and are exercisable at prices of 9.9 pence; and 
 
•         158,893 ordinary share granted January 2020 vest based on various non-market based corporate performance criteria 
and 3 years after grant and are exercisable at prices of 14.55 pence. 
  
Share Warrants 
  
The reconciliation of warrants during the year ended 31 August 2020 is shown below: 
  
  Number Of  Weighted  Weighted 
  Warrants  Average  Average 

 

 

 

 
Exercise 

Price (Pence) 

 Remaining 
Contractual 
Life (Years) 

       
At 31 August 2019  850,514  3.88  3.50 
Exercised in the Year  (850,514)  -  - 
  
At 31 August 2020, there were no warrants in issue (2019: 850,514). 
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Measurement of Fair Values 
The fair value of warrants and options granted during the year is calculated at the date of grant using Black-Scholes option 
pricing model. The weighted average fair value of warrants and options granted during the year ended 31 August 2020 
determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model were: 
 
•         Share price at the date of grant is 14.55 pence 
 
•         Exercise price of 14.55 pence 
 
•         Volatility of 10% based on comparative companies in the sector 
 
•         Dividend yield 0% 
 
•         Risk free interest rate 0.40% 
 
•         Expected option/warrant life of between 3 and 10 years 
 
The Company recognised a total expense of £74,513 in respect of shared-based awards. 
  

Note 34. Controlling Party 
  
The Directors do not consider there to be a single immediate or ultimate controlling party.  
  

Note 35. Events after the reporting period 
  
On 5 October 2020, the company issued 100,115 ordinary shares of one pence each as a result of an exercise of share 
options.  
  
As disclosed in note 32, three of the company's subsidiaries: 
 
- Infinite Education Limited;  
- Infinite Education (No 1) Limited; and 
- Quoralexis Learning Limited 
 
were struck off by the Registrar of Companies on 28 September 2020 and dissolved on 6 October 2020 at the completion of 
the voluntary strike off process entered into on 18 May 2020.  
  
No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 August 2020 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect 
the group's operations, the results of those operations, or the group's state of affairs in future financial years. 
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